
 
 

To: MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
Councillors Elias (Chair), Bourne, M.Cooper, Davies and 
Jones 
 
Substitute Councillors: Botten, Farr and Milton 
 

for any enquiries, please contact: 
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 

C.C. All Other Members of the Council 7 January 2021 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
INVESTMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
FRIDAY, 15TH JANUARY, 2021 AT 10.00 AM 
 
The agenda for this virtual meeting of the Sub-Committee,  to be hosted from the Council Offices, 
Oxted via Zoom, is set out below.  If a member of the Sub-Committee is unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify officers accordingly. 
 
Should members require clarification about any item of business, they are urged to contact officers 
before the meeting. In this respect, reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
If a Member of the Council, not being a member of the Sub-Committee, proposes to attend the 
meeting, please let the officers know by no later than noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
Jackie King  
Acting Chief Executive 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd October 2020  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

To confirm as a correct record 
 

2. Apologies for absence (if any)   
 
3. Declarations of interest   
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
 
(i) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
(ii) other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 

in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business.  If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or her staff prior to the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk


 

 
4. Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy  2021/22  (Pages 11 - 58) 
 
5. Summary investment and borrowing position  (Pages 59 - 76) 
 
6. Any other business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 

meeting as a matter of urgency   
 

 



INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the virtual meeting of the Sub-Committee held on the 23rd October 2020 at 10.00 a.m.   
 
PRESENT: Councillors Elias (Chair), Farr and Jones. 

  
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  Councillors Bourne and M.Cooper.      

  
 

1. MINUTES  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on the 21st May 2020 were approved as a correct record.  
 
 

2. PRESENTATION FROM UBS MULTI-ASSET INCOME FUND  
 MANAGERS  
 
 The Sub-Committee resolved to move into confidential session for this item in accordance with 

Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act and that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the 
information.  

 
The Council had invested £3 million in this fund which sought to generate an income of ‘cash plus 
3%’. It aimed to achieve a stable and sustainable yield without eroding capital. The Sub-Committee 
received a presentation from UBS representatives Rachel Perini (Executive Director) and Dimitris 
Skountzos (Client Service Manager). This covered UBS’s approach to multi-asset investing with 
an assessment of the fund’s performance to date. It was noted that the fund had limited foreign 
currency exposure to the extent of only 2%.  
 

 Arising from the presentation, Members requested clarification about on-going fund charges 
and mandate costs and the current value of the Council’s investment to date. Rachel Perini 
undertook to provide this information after the meeting.     

 
 

3. SUMMARY INVESTMENT AND BORROWING POSITION 
 
 The investment analysis at Appendices A and B was considered, together with fact sheets for the 

four funds within the Council’s treasury investment portfolio. The current statement of investment 
beliefs was also included with the agenda papers. 

 
 The Sub-Committee had previously agreed that redemption proceeds from Funding Circle loans 

be withdrawn from Funding Circle and reallocated to the CCLA diversification fund, Schroders 
bond fund and UBS multi-asset fund.   Members were advised that the Funding Circle redemption 
proceeds (which now amounted to £550,000) had not, in fact, been reinvested. The deputy Chief 
Finance Officer explained the reasons for this and sought the Sub-Committee’s views about 
whether the proceeds should, instead, be retained as a possible contingency for assisting with 
the Council’s cash flow requirements later in the current financial year. The Sub-Committee 
favoured this alternative approach, pending a review of the situation at the next meeting.  

 
 Arising from discussion about the loan to Freedom Leisure, it was confirmed that no repayments 

had been received since the third quarter of 2019/20.  
 
 Members also suggested that the statement of investment beliefs be reviewed at the Sub-

Committee’s next meeting. 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

  R E S O L V E D – that 
 
A. the Council’s investment and borrowing position at 30th September 2020, as set out 

at Appendices A and B, be noted;  
 

B. the individual factsheets for the long-term investments be noted;  
 

C. the current statement of investment beliefs be noted; and 
 

D. the reallocation of accumulated Funding Circle redemption proceeds be deferred, 
pending a review (at the Sub-Committee’s next meeting) about whether they should 
be used to meet the Council’s cashflow requirements.     

 
     

4. PROPERTY INVESTMENT UPDATE  
 
 The Sub-Committee resolved to move into confidential session for this item in accordance with 

Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act and that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the 
information.  

 
 The accompanying report updated Members on asset management activity and the performance 

of the Council’s commercial property investments. This confirmed that the Quadrant House 
regeneration project (in Caterham Valley) was a key priority in view of the pressing deadline for 
spending the funding made available by the Local Enterprise Partnership. Officers provided 
further information about the work to progress the Quadrant House initiative and offered to submit 
a progress report via the Delegated Action List in the near future.  

 
 It was noted that property B (referred to in recommendation C of the minutes of the previous 

meeting under item 5) was no longer available as it had been acquired by another investor at a 
price and subject to conditions, both similar to the ones previously agreed by the Sub-Committee. 
It was further noted that not proceeding with the acquisition of property B had left a gap of 
approximately £200,000 per annum (net after borrowing costs) in the commercial income budget.       

 
 The merits of reducing the capital programme, given the current shortage of suitable  commercial 

property acquisitions, were discussed. The total provision of £200 million for property investments 
to March 2021 would be significantly underspent and it was suggested that the budget be 
decreased to reflect actual activity, with future investment opportunities being considered on a 
case by case basis. 

 
  R E S O L V E D – that 
 

A. the Council’s property investment activity be noted;  
 

B. for capital budget for the development of a commercial property investment portfolio 
be reduced and future suitable investments be considered on a case by case basis; 
and 

 
C. a progress report regarding Quadrant House be submitted in the near future as part 

of the Delegated Action List  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 4



3 
 

5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 It was agreed that the next meeting be held on Friday, 15th January 2021 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

Rising: 12.05 p.m.  

Page 5



Summary of  Investments and Borrowing Appendix A

Investment
 Investment 
Amount at    
30/09/2020

Net Asset 
Value at 

30/09/2020 
Note 1

Yield Rate
Note 2

Yield to 
30/09/20
Note 3

Estimated 
Annual Return  

2020/21            at 
31/03/2021

2019/20 
Actual

£ £ % £ £ £
Non - Specified  (Financial Investments)- Long Term 
(over 12 mths)

CCLA Property Fund 4,000,000 4,013,737 4.26 40,761 171,000 185,240
Schroders Bond Fund 3,000,000 2,798,400 4.50 33,903 125,900 124,418
UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,000,000 2,721,211 4.40 36,832 119,700 137,531
Funding Circle 1,261,826 1,415,581 3.30 19,476 40,000 78,011
CCLA Diversification Fund 2,000,000 1,928,260 3.46 35,972 66,700 66,284

Sub Total Non-specified (Financial Investments) 13,261,826 12,877,189 166,944 523,300 591,484

Non - Specified (Non-Financial Investments)- Long 
Term (over 12 mths)
Gryllus Property Company Loan - Maidstone 2,394,000 2,394,000 5.81 0 139,100 139,023
Tandridge Leisure Ltd- Refurbishment Loan (TTLC) 0 0 0.00 0 0 1,520
Freedom Leisure- Loan (TLP) 1,017,000 1,017,000 5.50 0 53,271 63,926
Freedom Leisure- Loan (de Stafford) 651,750 651,750 7.58 0 47,050 54,484
Caterham Barracks 0 0 0.00 0 0 21,774
Gryllus Property Company Loan - 80-84 Station Rd East 945,000 945,000 5.81 0 54,900 53,924

Gryllus Property Company Loan - Castlefield 11,664,000 11,664,000 6.10 0 711,500 0
Gryllus Property Company Share Capital Note 4 5,317,500 5,317,500 - - - 0

Sub Total Non-specified (Non-Financial Investments) 21,989,249 21,989,249 0 1,005,821 334,651

Total Non-Specified Investments 35,251,075 34,866,438 166,944 1,529,121 926,135

Specified Investments-Short Term (less than 12 mths)
Banks/Building Societies Deposits 0 - 0.00 0 0 6,381
Notice Accounts 4,000,000 4,040,001 0.09 3,940 12,400 20,919
Money Market Funds 10,720,000 10,720,000 0.03 9,883 20,000 75,255

Total Specified Investments 14,720,000 14,760,001 13,823 32,400 102,555

Total Non- Specified and Specified Investments 49,971,075 49,626,439 180,767 1,561,521 1,028,690

Total Investment Income Budget 2020/21 2,764,200

Over/(under) budget (1,202,679)

Page 6



Borrowing Loan Amount
Estimated 
Average 

Borrowing
Interest

Expenditure 
to 30/09/20

Estimated 
Annual Cost    

2020/21        
at 31/03/2021

£ £ % £ £
General Fund Borrowing
Gryllus Loan 3,420,000 3,420,000 2.46 42,066 84,100
Freedom Leisure Loan 2,225,000 2,225,000 2.45 27,256 54,500
Village Health Club 938,678 938,678 2.38 11,170 22,300
Linden House 4,175,000 4,175,000 2.69 56,154 112,300
Linden House 254,000 254,000 2.42 3,073 6,100
Quadrant House 15,340,000 15,340,000 2.41 184,847 369,700
Quadrant House 800,000 800,000 2.28 9,120 18,200
Gryllus - 80-84 Station Road 724,400 724,400 2.28 8,258 16,500
Gryllus - Castlefield 15,549,000 15,549,000 2.91 226,238 452,500

Sub Total General Fund Borrowing 43,426,078 43,426,078 568,182 1,136,200

General Fund Cost of Borrowing Budget 1,889,000
Over/(Under) Budget (752,800)

HRA Borrowing
Public Works Loan Board 61,189,000 61,189,000 2.76 831,153 1,662,300

Sub Total HRA Borrowing 61,189,000 61,189,000 831,153 1,662,300

HRA Cost of Borrowing Budget 1,926,500
Over/(Under) Budget (264,200)

Total Borrowing 104,615,078 104,615,078 1,399,335 2,798,500
Total Cost of Borrowing Budget 3,815,500

Total Over/(Under) Budget (1,017,000)

Notes
1. The Net Asset Value for Funding Circle is at 31 Aug 2020

2. Yield Rate
CCLA Property Fund dividend yield Sept 20 provisional provided by CCLA 4.26%
Schroders Strategic Credit Fund Fact sheet on Schroders.co.uk current yield as at 31 Aug 2020 4.5%
UBS distribution yield latest per UBS Fact Sheet (Q2 20) 4.4 %
CCLA Diversified Fund dividend yield Sept 20 - 3.46% provided by CCLA
Funding Circle yield based on net earnings to 31 Aug 2020 per Funding Circle statement

4. Gryllus share capital comprises of equity shares arising from loans granted - no dividend will be paid in the current year

0

3. Yield to 30/09/20 include actuals received or notified of at this date - CCLA Property Fund, UBS & Schroders only show 1 quarter, Diversified income 
Fund shows 2 quarters.

Page 7



Market Value of Long Term Investments at 30/09/2020 Appendix B

Carrying Value Carrying Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Schroders Bond Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total 10,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000

Market Value Market Value

Market 

Value Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value

Market 

Value

Market 

Value Market Value

Market 

Value

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund(mid-market value) 4,082,986 4,276,854 4,299,512 4,300,362 4,369,186 4,276,005 4,346,669 4,302,769 4,302,769 4,188,063 4,013,737

Schroders Bond Fund 2,963,563 2,912,837 2,908,609 2,891,399 2,825,575 2,865,130 2,910,421 2,873,584 2,934,878 2,539,938 2,798,400

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,018,705 2,918,160 2,895,094 2,905,148 2,777,398 2,868,479 2,916,977 2,927,623 2,957,787 2,520,713 2,721,211

CCLA Diversification Fund(indicative market value) n/a 1,921,257 1,972,126 1,990,756 1,913,197 1,982,167 2,032,111 2,049,420 2,074,392 1,804,193 1,928,260

Total 10,065,254 12,029,108 12,075,341 12,087,665 11,885,356 11,991,781 12,206,179 12,153,396 12,269,826 11,052,907 11,461,608

Surplus/(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund 82,986 276,854 299,512 300,362 369,186 276,005 346,669 302,769 302,769 188,063 13,737

Schroders Bond Fund (36,437) (87,163) (91,391) (108,601) (174,425) (134,870) (89,579) (126,416) (65,122) (460,062) (201,600)

UBS Multi Asset Fund 18,705 (81,840) (104,906) (94,852) (222,602) (131,521) (83,023) (72,377) (42,213) (479,287) (278,789)

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a (78,743) (27,874) (9,244) (86,803) (17,833) 32,111 49,420 74,392 (195,807) (71,740)

Total 65,254 29,108 75,341 87,665 (114,644) (8,219) 206,179 153,396 269,826 (947,093) (538,392)

P
age 8



Appendix B

Gross Revenue Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield 20-21 Yield 20-21

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 30.09.2020 30.09.2020

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund 164,434 4.03% 193,758 4.53% 183,989 4.30% 185,240 4.31% 171,000 4.26%

Schroders Bond Fund 127,340 4.30% 105,413 3.62% 120,508 4.21% 124,418 4.33% 125,900 4.50%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 100,600 3.33% 146,788 5.03% 116,513 4.06% 137,531 4.70% 119,700 4.40%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a 62,732 3.27% 67,030 3.38% 66,284 3.23% 66,700 3.46%

Total 392,375 508,691 488,040 513,473 483,300

Surplus/(Deficit)- Capital Value

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund (92,996) -2.28% 193,868 4.53% (849) -0.02% (87,942) -2.04% (289,032) -6.72%

Schroders Bond Fund 16,634 0.56% (50,726) -1.74% (47,707) -1.67% (325,192) -11.32% (75,184) -2.62%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 36,559 1.21% (100,545) -3.45% (49,681) -1.73% (347,766) -11.88% (206,412) -7.05%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a (78,743) -4.10% 60,910 3.07% (177,974) -8.68% (121,160) -5.91%

Total (39,803) (36,146) (37,327) (938,874) (691,788)

Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund 71,438 1.75% 387,626 9.06% 183,140 4.28% 97,298 2.32% (118,032) -2.74%

Schroders Bond Fund 143,974 4.86% 54,687 1.88% 72,801 2.54% (200,774) -7.90% 50,716 1.73%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 137,159 4.54% 46,243 1.58% 66,832 2.33% (210,235) -8.34% (86,712) -2.93%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a (16,011) -0.83% 127,940 6.45% (111,690) -6.19% (54,460) -2.63%

Total 352,572 472,545 450,713 (425,401) (208,488)

Peer to Peer Investment 
2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 £ %

Funding Circle* £ % £ % £ % £ %

Carrying Value 2,003,355 2,075,341 2,056,664 1,831,028 1,415,581

Interest Paid by Borrowers 181,892 181,014 184,654 193,170 58,059

Less FC Service fee (19,121) (19,668) (19,729) -19,611 (5,741)

Promotions/Transfer payment 470 0

Bad Debts (58,163) (61,288) (111,152) -127,649 (44,442)

Recoveries 8,219 14,780 27,428 30,253 11,599

Amounts Recovered on principal in prior years (prior to  06.04.15) 0 0

Net Yield 112,827 5.63% 114,838 5.53% 81,201 3.95% 76,634 4.19% * 19,476 1.38%

Provisions for future losses 0 0 (10,000)

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

31/08/2020 Actual

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

CAPITAL, INVESTMENT AND TREASURY 

MANAGEMENT STRATGEY 2021/22 

 

Investment Sub Committee – 15 January 2020 

 

Report of:  Anna D’Alessandro – Chief Finance Office (Section 151) 

Simon Jones – Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Deputy S151) 

Alison Boote – Executive Head of Communities 

Purpose:  For decision 

Publication status: Unrestricted  

Wards affected: All 

 

Executive summary:  

This report submits the updated Capital, Investment and Treasury Management 

Strategy in accordance with MHCLG and CIPFA guidance to this Sub Committee 
for approval before going forward to full Council on 11th February 2021 for 

approval. 

 

This report supports the Council’s priority of: Building a better Council/ 

Creating the homes, infrastructure and environment we need/ Supporting 
economic recovery in Tandridge/ Becoming a greener, more sustainable District. 

 

Contact officer Simon Jones – Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Deputy S151)  

 sjones@tandridge.gov.uk 

 Alison Boote – Executive Head of Communities 

 aboote@tandridge.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation to Committee: 

That the Sub Committee recommends to Council the approval of the Capital, 
Investment and Treasury Management Strategy 

________________________________________________________ 

Reason for recommendation: 

This report and separate document will be reviewed by this Sub Committee 
before being recommended to Council for approval. This is a requirement of the 
CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. 

_________________________________________________________ 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:sjones@tandridge.gov.uk


 

1 Introduction and background 

1.1 The Capital and Investment Strategy, the Treasury Management Strategy 
and the Investment Property Strategy (‘Strategy’) have been updated and 

combined and is attached as a separate document. This strategy provides 
a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the delivery of the Council’s 

priorities along with an explanation of how risk, security and liquidity are 
managed. 

 
1.2 The aim of the Strategy is to provide a framework within which the 

Council’s Capital Investment Plans will be delivered. It provides a 

summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans and financing along 
with the principles, sources of finance and governance arrangements 

which apply to the management of the Capital Programme 
 

1.3 The Strategy also covers the Treasury Management function which main 

aim is to ensure that the income raised during the year is sufficient to 
meet expenditure plans and that the cash flow is planned, making sure 

that cash is available when needed. It is also key that when surplus cash 
is available this is invested with counterparties and in instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, whilst ensuring 

security and liquidity. 
 

1.4 The Council’s Investment Property Strategy is included within this 
document. This aims to provide a robust framework for the acquisition of 
property investments and the pursuance of redevelopment and 

regeneration opportunities. 
 

Key implications 

2. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 

2.1 The financial and risk implications are set out in detail within the attached 
Strategy and supporting Annexes. 

 

3. Comments of the Head of Legal Services 

3.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, 
revised reporting is required due to revisions of the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities & Local Government (‘MHCLG’) Investment Guidance, the 
MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

3.2 The primary reporting changes included the introduction of a capital 
strategy, to provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans and greater 

reporting requirements surrounding any commercial activity undertaken. 
As from 2019/20, all local authorities are required to prepare an additional 

Capital Strategy report. The guidance also includes a new requirement for 
Councils to prepare an Investment Strategy since 2019/20. Councils are 
required to prepare indicators that enable Members and the public to 

assess the Council’s investments and the decisions taken.  

 

4. Equality 

4.1 The proposals within this report do not have the potential to disadvantage 
or discriminate against different groups with protected characteristics in 

the community. 

 

5. Climate change 

5.1 There are no significant environmental/sustainability implications 
associated with the report. It is however recognised that some Council 

investments may be in companies that are considered to have a 
detrimental impact on the climate, for example oil companies. The Climate 

Change Action Plan that is currently being draw up will have an action 
included to consider our current investment approach and determine if 
changes can or should be made. 

 

Appendices 

None 

 

Separate Document 

Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22 and supporting 
Annexes. 

 

Background papers 

Refer to 2021/22 Draft Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy to 2023/24. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE – 15th JANUARY 2020 

CAPITAL, INVESTMENT AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY (THE 

STRATEGY) 2021/22 to 2023/24 

 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 

1.1 The Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy (The Strategy) sets out the 

over-arching principles and processes by which the capital and investment decisions set 

out in the capital programme will be prioritised against the Council’s key priorities. 

 

1.2 The Strategy considers the funding implications of the capital programme and where 

borrowing is required. In addition, it sets out how this will be managed along with the 

policy for managing investments. 

 

1.3 The following appendices are included: 

 

 Appendix A – Investment Property Strategy (including Annexe A and Annexe B) 

 Appendix B – Capital Strategy Principles 

 Appendix C – Corporate Governance 

 Appendix D – Capital Programme 2021/24 

 Appendix E – Sources of Capital Funding 

 Appendix F – Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2021/22 

 Appendix G – Statement of Investment Beliefs 

 Appendix H – Treasury Management Strategy 

 

2. Introduction 

2.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget which broadly means that income 

raised during the year will meet planned expenditure. Part of the treasury management 

operation is to ensure that the cashflow for this is adequately planned, with cash being 

available when it is needed. Where surplus monies are available these are invested with 

counterparties or in instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 

providing security and adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

2.2 The Strategy is a combined document bringing together previously separate documents; 

Capital and Investment Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy and Investment 

Property Strategy. It gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital 

financing and other investments contribute to the delivery of the Council’s priorities along 

with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the implications for future 

financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style in an attempt to enhance 

Members’ understanding of these rather technical areas. 

2.3 The overarching aim of the 2021/22 to 2023/24 Strategy is to provide a framework within 

which the Council’s capital investment plans will be delivered. It has been prepared to 

cover a three-year time-frame and covers borrowing and investment considerations. This 

includes the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code along with the requirements of the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 

Finance in Local Authorities.  

Page 15



2.4 In accordance with IFRS16 all leases will be accounted for as finance leases effective 

from 1 April 2022. This requires a right of use asset and corresponding lease liability to be 

shown on the Council’s balance sheet. Whilst the accounting arrangements change there 

is zero impact on the general fund. As this has been deferred any impact will be reflected 

in the 2021/22 Strategy. 

2.5 Capital investment plans are driven by the Council’s priorities included within the Strategic 

Plan, agreed by Strategy and Resources Committee. The plan sets out the Council’s 

priorities, listed below and the actions that are being taken now and into the next four 

years.  

3. Council’s priorities 

3.1 The Council’s key priorities are: 

 Building a better Council – making the Council financially sustainable and providing 
residents with the best possible services; 

 Creating the homes, infrastructure and environment we need – both now and in 
the future; 

 Supporting economic recovery in Tandridge – from lockdown to growth that 
everyone benefits from; and 

 Becoming a greener, more sustainable District – tackling climate change. 

3.2 The above priorities will be achieved by working in partnership with other public-sector 
agencies and businesses within the District and beyond.  

3.3 The priorities reflect the on-going commitment to ensure the Council works to serve the 

people of Tandridge in all that it does and provides strong leadership for the District. Such 

leadership is essential if the District is to be able to meet the immediate challenges faced 

in a way that means it is stronger and able to make the most of opportunities in the future. 

 

3.4 Aligned to the Council’s priorities, individual scheme proposals are included within 

approved capital spending plans or are to be considered for financing over the period of 

the Strategy  

3.5 The Investment Property Strategy (IPS) presents a framework for strategic management 

of the Council’s land and property portfolio, reflecting the Council’s key priorities and 

driving transformational change. It aligns with the Council’s strategic priorities and the 

Council’s wider priorities for revenue generation, site acquisition, site development, 

release of assets for disposal, affordable housing and regeneration within the District. 

3.6 The Council is continuing to develop the IPS and this will regularly be refreshed to 
improve the way in which Property Investment objectives can be delivered. This will 
enable the Council to accelerate progress and realise benefits within a shorter timeframe, 
whilst maximising regeneration and investment opportunities. The current Investment 
Property Strategy can be found at Appendix A.  A set of overarching principles, which 
apply to the Council’s 2020/21 Strategy, are set out in Appendix B. 

 

3.7 The Council’s intention in relation to capital investment is to ensure it can make a real and 

demonstrable impact on the economy of Tandridge by: 

 Regenerating the District, by attracting and securing significant amounts of external 
investment to supplement Council resources and deliver an enhanced district-wide 
regeneration offer; 

 Prioritising the regeneration investment to develop the local economy and to 
support job creation and promote local employment within the District.; and 

Page 16



 Using the regeneration investment to drive up the yield from business rates. This 
will provide additional resources which can either be used to support the Council’s 
budget or to pursue opportunities for further investment in Tandridge.  

 
3.8 The Council will also: 
  

 Work with Surrey County Council, Parish Councils, Health, Police and Fire as a co-
operative and commissioning District particularly with regard to the integration of health 
and social care to promote joint investment opportunities, co-location and the release 
of surplus assets;  

 Instigate further transformational approaches to the delivery of services with and by 
communities and staff, that maximise involvement and delivery at a more local level, 
working with residents to reset priorities, manage expectations and promote self-help;  

 Get the basics right, drive improved business performance with more flexible customer 
focused ICT systems which enable web-based self-service and instigate new delivery 
models; and 

 Focus on effective service delivery, achieving social value and maximising the impact 
of the resources invested.  

 
4. Capital Programme Governance  
 
4.1 The Council has specific arrangements for the management of capital expenditure. The 

principles for governance of the Capital Programme are detailed in Appendix C. The 
separate approval process for the acquisition of investments in property is contained 
within the Investment Property Strategy. 

 

5. Asset Management & Asset Disposals 

5.1 When a capital asset is no longer needed for Council purposes and surplus to 

requirements, it may be sold so that the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be used 

to finance the acquisition of new assets or used to repay debt. The Council does not 

currently have a land disposal programme for the General Fund. The current policy is to 

use any surplus land and property which is identified for housing purposes. Therefore, it is 

unlikely that any significant General Fund capital receipts will be received in the future. 

5.2 There are specific regulations about the extent to which capital receipts from sales of 

Council Houses can be used to finance new capital expenditure. Repayments of capital 

grants, loans and investments are classified as capital receipts. The Council does not 

anticipate any General Fund capital receipts in the coming financial year. The estimated 

capital receipts are set out below: 

Table 1: Capital receipts in £ millions 

 2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

HRA Disposals 1,129 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,400 

GF Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 

Loans repaid 566 318 318 318 318 

TOTAL 1,695 1,718 1,718 1,718 1,718 

 

Page 17



6. Key Priorities for Capital Investment 

6.1 Priority investment areas for 2020/21 onwards will be taken forward subject to the 
availability of resources and the approval of a full business case. 

 
7. Capital Expenditure and Financing 
 
7.1 Capital expenditure investment is where the Council spends money on physical capital 

assets, such as property or vehicles, that will be used for more than one year in the 

delivery of services, and, where appropriate: 

 Capital loans to specific service providers e.g. loans to Gryllus Property Ltd and 

Freedom Leisure; 

 Loans and shareholdings in limited companies, joint ventures and other non-

financial investments in property; and 

 Spending on assets owned by other bodies and providing loans and grants to 

other bodies to enable them to buy assets.  

7.2 The Council capitalises expenditure on the acquisition or creation of a tangible or 

intangible asset, where the expenditure adds to and not merely maintains the value of the 

asset. The Council’s capital expenditure is the key driver of treasury management activity. 

7.3 The capital expenditure prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital 

expenditure plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of the budget 

cycle. In 2021/22, the Council is planning capital expenditure investment of c£55m, over 

the medium-term as summarised below: 

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Capital Expenditure in £ millions 

 2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 

services 

17.486 6.386 8.514 1.656 1.129 

Council Housing 

(HRA) 

8.126 9.275 16.554 7.705 4.025 

Commercial 

activities/non-financial 

investments* 

16.899 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 42.511 15.661 25.068 9.361 5.154 

* Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure on investment 
properties, loans to third parties etc. 

 

7.4 The main General Fund capital projects include the refurbishment of public conveniences 

(£0.550m), IT hardware/infrastructure projects (£0.966m), Vehicle Replacement 

Programme (£0.624m) and Children’s Playground Improvements (£0.580m). The Council 

also plans to incur £4.9m of capital expenditure on the refurbishment of Quadrant House 

phase 2 as part of the Council’s economic development plans. Quadrant House is 

currently a catalyst for improvement in Caterham and the expenditure is being funded via 

two Local Enterprise Partnership grants that have been awarded. 

Page 18



7.5 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that 

Council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services. HRA 

capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately. Details of the draft Capital 

Programme 2021/24 are attached at Appendix D. 

7.6 All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external resources (government 

grants and other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue contributions, 

reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative). 

The planned financing of the programme is shown below: 

 

Table 3: Financing of Capital Expenditure in £ millions 

 2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

External resources 1.025 1.550 6.093 0.790 0.460 

Internal resources 8.344 10.300 10.894 6.214 4.025 

Borrowing 33.142 3.811 8.081 2.357 0.669 

TOTAL 42.511 15.661 25.068 9.361 5.154 

 
7.7 Further details on the various funding sources for funding capital expenditure are set out 

in Appendix E. 
 
8. Capital Financing Requirement 
 
8.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Authority’s underlying need to 

borrow. The CFR will increase by the amount of new capital expenditure not immediately 

financed (e.g. by capital receipts, capital grants/contributions or from revenue) and will 

reduce by resources set aside for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The CFR is 

anticipated to increase by c£3m during 2020/21. Based on the above figures for 

expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions 

 31/03/2020 

Actual £m 

31/03/2021 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2022 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2023 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2024 

Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 

services 

23.811 27.276 33.843 33.486 32,840 

Council housing 

(HRA) 

61.308 61.308 67.068 68.659 68.759 

Commercial 

activities/non- 

financial 

investments 

21.619 21.183 16.066 15.844 15.616 

TOTAL CFR 106.738 109.767 116.977 117.989 117.215 

 
 

 

Page 19



Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

8.2 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)(England)(Amendment) 

Regulations 2008 require a local authority to determine each financial year an amount of 

MRP which it considers to be prudent. The broad aim of MRP is to ensure that debt is 

repaid over a period reasonably commensurate with that within which the capital 

expenditure provides a benefit. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) recommends that a statement of MRP policy for the forthcoming 

Financial year is approved by the full Council of the Authority.  

8.3 The guidance issued gives four options for making MRP which the Secretary of State 

considers prudent provision. The option chosen can be altered annually. 

8.4 The Council’s MRP policy is to follow the Asset Life Method. The Asset Life - annuity 

method allows MRP to increase gradually over the asset life, which better reflects the 

profile of the Council’s borrowing requirement for its previous commercial activities. The 

Asset Life – equal instalments instalment method provides MRP in equal instalments and 

is applied to the Council’s non-commercial activities. The Council’s full minimum revenue 

provision policy statement is attached at Appendix F. 

8.5 Borrowing is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, 

and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which is 

MRP. Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may 

be used to replace debt finance. Planned MRP repayments are as follows: 

Table 5: Replacement of debt finance in £ millions 

 2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Budget 

£m 

2022/23 

Budget 

£m 

2023/24 

Budget 

£m 

Minimum Revenue 

Provision 

0.162 0.782 0.871 1.344 1.443 

 

8.6 There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there is a 

requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made. 

9. Treasury Management 

9.1 The capital expenditure plans are set out in Section 7. The treasury management function 

ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional 

codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet service activity. This will involve both the 

organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of 

appropriate borrowing facilities. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage 

of cash will be met by borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the 

bank current account. The Council is typically cash rich in the short-term as income is 

received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is 

incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital 

cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.  

 Current portfolio position 

9.2 The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2020 is shown below for both 

investment and borrowing:  

 

 Page 20



Table 6: Current Investment Portfolio in £ millions  
 2019/20 

Actual 

31/03/2020 

£m 

2019/20 

Actual 

31/03/2020 

% 

Notice Accounts & Cash Plus 

Funds 
4.0 0.8 

Money Market Funds 10.9 0.7 

Short-term Deposits 0 0 

CCLA Property Fund 4.2 4.4 

Funding Circle 1.8 3.9 

Schroders Bond Fund 2.5 4.9 

UBS Multi-Asset Fund 2.5 5.5 

CCLA Diversification Fund 1.8 3.7 

   

Total Treasury Investments 27.7 2.5 

   

Long-term PWLB loans (HRA) 61.2 2.7 

Long-term PWLB loans (GF) 43.4 2.6 

   

Total Borrowing 104.6 2.7 

   

Net Borrowing 76.9  

 

9.3 As a result of decisions taken in the past, the Council has borrowing of £105m at an 

average interest rate of 2.7 % and treasury investments totalling £27.7m at an average 

rate of 2.5% at 31st March 2020. 

 Borrowing Strategy 

9.4 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the 

capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded 

with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has 

been used as a temporary measure (internal borrowing). This strategy is prudent as 

investment returns are low and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be 

considered. 

9.5 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 

adopted with the 2021/22 treasury operations. The Chief Finance Officer (s151) will 

monitor interest rates in financial markets, in conjunction with Link, our Treasury advisers 

and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances. These changes will be 

reported to the appropriate decision-making body at the next available opportunity. 

 
Page 21



PWLB Consultation 
 

9.6 In March 2020 the government launched a consultation on revised lending terms and 
guidance to prevent Local Authorities from using PWLB loans to buy commercial assets 
with the primary aim of generating yield. 

 
9.7 The government issued new lending terms following this consultation which applies to all 

loans from 26th November 2020. As it is impossible to ‘reliably link particular loans to 
specific spending’ the restriction applies to the whole capital programme. This means the 
PWLB will not lend to a Local Authority that plans to buy investment primarily for yield 
anywhere in its capital plans. 
 

9.8 The Council’s expenditure plans included in Table 2 reflect these new restrictions which 
do not impact the Council as there is no intention to buy investment assets primarily for 
yield over next three years. 
 
Prudential borrowing 
 

9.9 The Council will investigate opportunities to resource capital projects using prudential 
borrowing where plans are sustainable, affordable and prudent. A full business case will 
be required to ensure, sufficient revenue returns are generated to cover all the costs of 
borrowing. This will be especially important when undertaking property acquisitions under 
the Investment Property Strategy where, in addition, a revenue income stream is required 
to support the revenue budget. Strategy and Resources Committee will review the 
detailed capital expenditure plans before resources are committed to ensure affordability. 

 
Table 7: Prudential Indicator: Forecast Gross External Debt and the Capital 

Financing Requirement in £ millions 

 31.3.2020 

Actual 

£m  

31.3.2021 

Estimate 

£m  

31.3.2022 

Estimate 

£m 

31.3.2023 

Estimate 

£m  

31.3.2024 

Estimate 

£m 

HRA Debt  61.2 61.2 66.8 68.3 68.3 

General Fund External 

Debt 

43.4 43.4 43.4 43.4 43.4 

Other Long-Term 

Liabilities 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total Debt 104.6 104.6 110.2 111.7 111.7 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 

106.7 109.8 117.0 118.0 117.2 

CFR not funded by 

Borrowing 

2.1 5.2 6.8 6.3 5.5 

 

9.10 Statutory guidance is that to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a 

capital purpose, external debt should remain below the CFR, except in the short-term. As 

can be seen from Table 7, the Council expects to comply with this.  

Borrowing in advance of need 

9.11 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit 

from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will 

be within forward approved CFR estimates and will be considered carefully to ensure that 

Page 22



value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of 

such funds.  

Affordable borrowing limit 

9.12 The Prudential Code requires the Council to set two limits on its total external 

debt, as set out in the table below. The limits have been adjusted as required for 

growth and slippage in the capital strategy. The limits are: 

9.13 Authorised Limit for External Debt. This is the limit prescribed by section 3(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003 representing the maximum level of borrowing which the 
Council may incur. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short-term, but may not be sustainable in the longer term. 

 
9.14 Operational Boundary. This is the limit which external debt i s  not normally expected 

to exceed. In most cases this would be a similar figure to the CFR but may be lower or 
higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing from 
other cash resources. The boundary is based on current debt plus anticipated net 
f inancing need for future years. 
 

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for 

external debt in £m 

 2020/21 

limit  

£m 

2021/22 

limit  

£m 

2022/23 

limit  

£m 

2023/24 

limit  

£m 

Authorised limit – borrowing 

Authorised limit – leases 

Authorised limit – total external debt 

150 

0 

150 

150 

0 

150 

150 

0 

150 

150 

0 

150 

Operational boundary – borrowing 

Operational boundary – leases 

Operational boundary – total external 

debt 

140 

0 

140 

140 

0 

140 

140 

0 

140 

140 

0 

140 

 

 Prospects for interest rates 

9.15 The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their 

service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  

 Maturity structure of borrowing 

9.16 Managing the profile of when debt matures is essential for ensuring that the Council is 

not exposed to large fixed rate sums falling due for re-financing within a short period, 

and thus potentially exposing the Council to additional cost. The table below sets out 

current upper limits for debt maturity.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



Table 9: Debt Maturity Profile in % 

Debt Maturity Profile Limits Actual 
as at 

31/03/20 

Upper 
Limit  

2021/22 

 % % 
   
Under 1 year 
1 to 2 years 
2 to 5 years 
5 years to 10 years 

4 
2 
9 

25 

15 
15 
25 
50 

More than 10 years  11 50 
Over 20 years 49 50 
   

Total 100%  

 

9.17 In the event that there is a much sharper rise in long and short-term rates than 

currently forecast, then the balance of the loan portfolio will be re-visited with a view to 

taking on longer term fixed rate borrowing in anticipation of future rate rises. 

 Investment strategy 

 Treasury Investments 

9.18 Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before it is paid out again. Investments 

made for service reasons or for pure financial gain are not generally considered to be part 

of treasury management.  

9.19 The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over 

yield, that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash that is likely 

to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the government, other 

Local Authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk of loss. Money that 

will be held for longer terms is invested more widely, including in bonds, shares and 

property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of receiving returns below inflation. 

Both short-term and medium-term investments may be held in pooled funds, where an 

external fund manager makes decisions on which particular investments to buy and the 

Council may request its money back at short notice. 

 The Council’s Statement of Investment Beliefs can be found in Appendix G.  

Table 10: Treasury management investments in £millions 

 

31/03/20 

Actual  

£m 

31/03/21 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/22 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/23 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/24 

Estimate 

£m 

Short Term Investments 8.5 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 

Medium Term investments 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 

Long Term Investments 28.1 28.1 45.1 45.1 45.1 

TOTAL 41.7 41.2 41.2 41.2 41.2 

 

9.20 Further details on treasury investments are contained within Appendix H the Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

9.21 Governance- Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made 

daily and are therefore delegated to the Chief Finance Officer (s151) and staff, who must 
Page 24



act in line with the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council. Regular reports 

on treasury management activity are presented to the Investment Sub-Committee.  

Service Investments-Loans and Shares 

9.22 Loans- the Council makes investments to assist local public services; including making 

loans to local service providers, local small businesses to promote economic growth and 

the Council’s subsidiaries that provide services. In light of the public service objective, the 

Council is willing to take more risk than with treasury investments, however it still plans for 

such investments to generate a profit after all costs. 

9.23 Security- the main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to 

repay the principal lent and/or the interest due. To limit this risk, and ensure that total 

exposure to service loans remains proportionate to the size of the Authority, upper limits 

on the outstanding loans to each category of borrower have been set as follows:  

Table 11: Loans for service purposes in £ millions 

Category of 

borrower 

31.3.2021 Forecast 2021/22 

Balance 

owing 

Loss 

allowance 

Net figure 

in 

accounts 

Approved 

Limit 

Subsidiaries 15.070 0 15.070 19.3 

Suppliers 1.350 0 1.350 2.6 

TOTAL 16.420 0 16.420 21.9 

 

9.24 Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside loss allowance for loans, reflecting 

the likelihood of non-payment. The figures for loans in the Authority’s Statement of 

Accounts from 2018/19 onwards are shown net of this loss allowance. However, the 

Authority makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has appropriate 

credit control arrangements in place to recover overdue repayments.  

9.25 Risk assessment- The Council assesses the risks of loans prior to arrangement. The loan 

to the supplier is partly secured on a fixed asset and the balance is secured against a 

cash deposit.  

Shares 

9.26 Security- One of the risks of investing in shares is that they fall in value meaning that the 

initial outlay may not be recovered. To limit this risk, upper limits on the sum invested in 

each category of shares have been set as follows: 

Table 12: Shares held for service purposes in £ millions 

Category of 

company 

31.3.2021 Forecast 2021/22 

Amounts 

invested 

£m 

Gains or 

losses 

£m 

Value in 

accounts 

£m 

Approved         

Limit    

£m 

Subsidiaries 5.253 0 5.253 11.000 

TOTAL 5.253 0 5.253 11.000 

 

Page 25



9.27 The Council currently has one Service Loan to a supplier (Freedom Leisure - £2.225m) 

who provides the Council’s outsourced leisure services. The other loan £15.070m is with 

the Council’s subsidiary Gryllus Property Ltd. The Council has created an Income 

Equalisation Reserve with an initial balance of £150,000 to finance any diminution in value 

of the investment and loan to Gryllus or any non-repayment of the Freedom Leisure Loan 

in future years. The reserves will also be used to smooth income from the investment 

property portfolio due to voids or non-payments. The 2020/21 budget allows for a further 

contribution of £250,000 to this reserve with additional annual contributions of £100,000 

currently budgeted for in the MTFS. The provision for loss will be reviewed annually. 

9.28 Risk assessment- The investment in shares totalling £5.253m is within the Council’s 

subsidiary Gryllus Property Ltd. The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering 

into and whilst holding shares by assessing the current and future return achievable and 

the level of security provided by the assets of the company, and the level of control which 

the Council can exert over the strategy of the company. Gryllus is 100% owned and 

controlled by the Council. The Council also takes independent financial advice on 

investments. The Income Equalisation Reserves will help mitigate the risk of any loss of 

income from the Council’s investments allowing time to formulate plans to address any 

longer-term reductions in income. 

9.29 Liquidity- The funding of long term investments in the Council’s subsidiary are financed by 

fixed long-term borrowing, so that there is no short or medium-term risk to the liquidity of 

the Council, which would require the Council to be forced to liquidate its asset in the 

company.  

9.30 Non-specified Investments- Shares are the only investment type that the Authority has 

identified that meets the definition of a non-specified investment in the government 

guidance. The limits above on share investments are therefore also the Authority’s upper 

limits on non-specified investments. The Authority has not adopted any procedures for 

determining further categories of non-specified investment since none are likely to meet 

the definition.  

9.31 Governance- Decisions on service investments are agreed by Executive Leadership 

Team led by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and must 

meet the criteria and limits laid down in the Investment Property Strategy. Most loans and 

shares are capital expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of 

the capital programme. 

10. Property Investment  

10.1 With Central Government financial support for local public services declining, the Council 

invests in commercial and residential property principally within the local area in pursuit of 

primarily economic development objectives and also lends to its subsidiary Gryllus 

Property Ltd.  

Table 13: Property held for socio economic and/or development purposes in £ 

millions 

Property   Actual 31/03/2020 Actual 

Year of 

Purchase 

Purchase 

cost 

£m 

Gains or 

(losses) 

£m 

Value in 

accounts 

£m 

Redstone House 1975/76 0.120 0.387 0.507 

Page 26



Linden House 2018/19 4.434 0.155 4.589 

Village Health Cub 2018/19 0.860 0.076 0.936 

Quadrant House 2019/20 15.495 - 15.495 

TOTAL  20.909 0.618 21.527 

 

10.2 Security- In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a property 

investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase cost 

including taxes and transaction costs.  

10.3 A fair value assessment of the Authority’s investment property portfolio has been made 

within the past 12 months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital 

investment. Should the 2020/21 year-end accounts preparation and audit process value 

these properties below their purchase cost, then an updated investment strategy will be 

presented to full council detailing the impact of the loss on the security of investments and 

any revenue consequences arising therefrom.  

10.4 Risk assessment- The Council accepts higher risk on commercial investment than with 

treasury investments. The principal risk exposures include near-term and longer-term 

risks, e.g. vacancies, fall in capital value, etc. These risks are managed by ensuring 

leases are with tenants of good financial standing and there is considerable before break 

clauses apply and the properties are of good quality in good locations. A varied portfolio 

will be acquired in diverse sectors thus spreading the risk. The Authority assesses the risk 

of loss before entering into and whilst holding property investments through independent 

advice sought from advisers. The Council has a risk matrix for assessing the quality of the 

investment to measure the suitability and risk of the investment, this is contained within 

the Investment Property Strategy. To further mitigate risk, a provision will be set aside 

from rental income to mitigate the risks of voids and only properties with a significant 

period before the next break clause.  

10.5 Liquidity- Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and 

convert to cash at short notice and can take a considerable period to sell in certain market 

conditions. The funding of long term investments in the Council’s subsidiary are financed 

by fixed long term borrowing, so that there is no short or medium-term risk to the liquidity 

of the Council, which would require the Council to be forced to liquidate its asset and 

suffer a loss nor impact upon the Council’s provision of services. As these long-term 

investments are matched by long-term borrowing, it will not be necessary to access the 

invested funds in an emergency. Investments in property are not undertaken unless they 

are secure over the medium term and the target rate of return significantly exceeds the 

annual cost of borrowing.  

10.6 The Council’s strategy for these property investments is covered by the Investment 

Property Strategy. 

10.7 Governance- Decisions on property investments are made by the Chief Executive and 

Strategy and Resources Committee in line with the criteria and limits approved by Council 

in the Investment Property Strategy. Property acquisitions are also capital expenditure 

and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital programme. 

10.8 Further details on commercial property investments and limits on their use are set out in 

the Investment Property Strategy. 

Page 27



11. Liabilities 

11.1 The Council is committed to making future payments to cover its pension fund deficit 

(valued at £50.9m). This is revalued on a triennial basis, with the next valuation due in 

2022. Payments are made based on a calculated contribution rate. 

11.2 Governance- Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by Executive 

Leadership Team in consultation with the Section 151 Officer. The risk of liabilities 

crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by Finance and reported as and when 

they are identified as part of regular financial monitoring. 

11.3 Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees 

 Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has changed hands yet, 

loan commitments and financial guarantees carry similar risks. The Council has given no 

further formal loan commitments or guarantees to Gryllus Property Limited, Freedom 

Leisure or any other organisation. However, the Council would consider any request for 

funding from its Gryllus Property Limited if required, subject to a suitable business case.   

12. Proportionality  

12.1 The Authority does not plan to be dependent on profit generating investment activity to 

achieve a balanced revenue budget. Table 14 below shows the extent to which the 

expenditure planned to meet the service delivery objectives and/or place making role of 

the Authority is dependent on achieving the expected net profit from investments over the 

lifecycle of the MTFS. Should it fail to achieve the expected net profit, the Authority’s 

contingency plans for continuing to provide these services will be to set side rental income 

in an income equalisation reserve and income will only be released from the reserve when 

earned. Income will only be used to support expenditure initiatives which by nature 

represent one-off spending or are easily curtailed. Income from rental income will not be 

used to support statutory responsibilities.   

 

Table 14: Proportionality of Investments 

 2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

Net Revenue Stream 11.860 10.600 10.446 10.232 10.576 

Investment rental 

income 
0.746 0.742 0.905 0.914 0.923 

Proportion 6.3% 7.0% 8.7% 8.9% 8.7% 

13. Revenue Budget Implications 

13.1 Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest 

payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income 

receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the net 

revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and general 

government grants. 

 

 Page 28



Table 15: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 

 

2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

Net revenue stream 11.860 10.600 10.446 10.232 10.576 

General Fund-

Financing costs  
(0.268) 0.357 0.406 0.880 0.979 

Proportion of General 

Fund net revenue 

stream 

(2.3%) 3.40% 3.9% 8.6% 9.3% 

 

13.2 Sustainability- Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the 

revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will extend for 

up to 50 years into the future. The Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the proposed 

capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable.  

14. Knowledge, Skills, Capacity and Culture 

14.1 The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions 

with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions.  

14.2 Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of 

external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The Council currently 

employs Link Asset Services as Treasury advisers and employs property advisers to carry 

out valuations and advise on property purchases. This approach is more cost effective 

than employing such staff directly and ensures that the Council has access to knowledge 

and skills commensurate with its risk appetite. Senior staff maintain their skills and 

knowledge up to date by attending technical briefings, circulars from Treasury advisers 

and CIPFA treasury workshops. The Council also provides training for Councillors who 

are involved with Treasury matters. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



APPENDIX A 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY STRATEGY 2021/2022 

Introduction  

1. The Investment Property Strategy forms part of the Council’s overall Capital, Investment & 

Treasury Management Strategy and is included with the fund performance monitoring and 

reporting procedures.   

 

2. The returns from property investment will contribute positively towards the achievement of 

savings targets and budgets to enable the continued delivery and investment in key frontline 

services and/or the bolstering of financial reserves whilst achieving a balanced budget. 

 

3. The Investment Property Strategy aims to provide a robust and viable framework for the 

acquisition of property towards the pursuance of redevelopment and regeneration 

opportunities that can deliver positive returns and/or significant benefits to our residents, 

businesses and communities.  

 

4. The strategy is to set out how the investment property portfolio will be managed and covers 

the following matters: 

 

 Objectives and strategic priorities for Investment Property; 

 Governance and performance reporting arrangements; 

 Risks; 

 Portfolio Mix; 

 Funding, Performance monitoring and Financial Indicators for Investment Property; 

 Investment evaluation criteria; 

 Acquisition procedure; and 

 Disposal Procedure 

Background 

5. The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations requires the Council to 

have regard to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential 

Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance (the Guidance) to ensure that the Council’s capital 

investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

 

6. The Local Government Act 1972 – Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers 

Local Authorities to acquire by agreement “any land whether situated inside or outside their 

area for the purpose of any of their functions under this or any other enactment, or for the 

benefit, improvement or development of their area”. 

 

7. The Localism Act 2011 – Part 1, Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. Local Authorities are 

allowed to confer powers for a commercial purpose or for the benefit of the Authority, its area 

or residents.  

 

Government Guidance 

8. In February 2018 the Secretary of State issued new guidance on Local Government 

Investments (the Guidance) which widened the definition of an investment to include all the 

financial assets of a Local Authority as well as non-financial assets held primarily or partially 

to generate a profit.  

 
Page 30



9. The Guidance requires the Investment Property Strategy to be approved by Full Council on 

an annual basis and sets out the disclosure and reporting requirements. Any midyear material 

changes will also be subject to Full Council approval. Further CIPFA guidance issued in 

November 2019 reinforces the need for a comprehensive Investment Property Strategy. 

 

10. In November 2020 HM Treasury published their conclusions from the consultation regarding 

the use of monies lent by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  “In recent years a minority 

of Local Authorities have borrowed substantial sums from the PWLB to buy investment 

property with the primary aim of generating yield.  

 

11. New guidelines have been brought in for PWLB borrowing which mean that borrowing for 

yield purposes only will not be possible without using other sources of finance, which would 

almost certainly mean increased costs for the Council. Borrowing for yield through the PWLB 

will exclude the Council from all other future PWLB borrowing whatever the purpose. This 

would cause significant problems and increase costs, in particular for the funding of affordable 

housing development and essential works through the Housing Revenue Account. Other 

sources of finance are unlikely to be at such competitive levels. 

 

Objectives and Strategic priorities for the Property Investment Portfolio 

 

12. The objective of the Investment Property Strategy is to establish a framework for the 

identification of property investments which, if acquired, would either provide the Council with 

a positive rental return and capital growth or provide significant regeneration and/or 

development opportunities for the District. When making investments the Strategy & 

Resources Committee will have regard not only to the potential for positive rental returns and 

capital growth but also to the likely economic, social and environmental benefits for the 

residents and businesses of the Council.  

 

13. The Council has considered the potential outcome of the HM Treasury consultation through 

2020. Mindful of the economic climate, organisational attitude to risk and the Council’s 

financial position. It anticipated the outcome of the Consultation and has recently moved away 

from acquisitions of commercial property for yield  

 

14. The Investment Evaluation Criteria (Annexe A) and the Acquisition and Disposal Procedure 

(Annexe B) remain applicable as they cover good practice of all property purchase 

circumstances.   

 

15. In delivering the strategy over the next year the following main priorities are to be used to 

guide the growth of the investment property portfolio: 

 

a) A major driver for acquisition of new investment property will be economic benefit for 

the residents of the Council either through protection of commercial space or 

employment generation/protection; and 

b) Properties that have a development potential will also be considered for their long-

term benefits.  

 

Investments will be mainly focussed within the District boundary. It is not considered that 

there will many opportunities for properties outside the District over the next three years of the 

Investment Property Strategy which will align with the Council’s priorities 

 

 

16. Investment relating to the Investment Property Strategy will be directed towards:- Page 31



Regeneration and Development Opportunities 

Investment which can facilitate/generate regeneration or economic development benefits 

as well as positive financial returns for the Council. Financial returns for the Council may 

come in the form of increased business rates or New Homes Bonus where the Investment 

is within the District. 

The Contributions from Regeneration and Development Investments will include positive 

financial returns for the Council and may also include the following: 

 Regeneration benefits for the area including employment opportunities; 

 Economic benefits for the area; 

 Social value improvements e.g. place-making, public realm space, pride in one’s 

local area and surroundings; and 

 Environmental improvements e.g. demolition or refurbishment of old, inefficient 

and/or vacant/unsightly properties. 

Economic, social and environmental benefits collectively make up the strategic value of an asset, 

and collectively, they can drive inward private investment and prosperity for an area. 

 

Governance and Performance  

 

17. The Strategy and Resources Committee will be responsible for approving the strategic 

priorities and the arrangements set out in this policy. There will be an annual report to the 

Committee that will set out performance over the previous year and plans for the next. 

 

18. Operational management, including acquisitions is to be delegated to officers acting within 

Financial Regulation 17 of the Council Constitution 

 

a) The Chief Executive, in consultation with Members as per Standing Order 46 of the 

Council’s Constitution (Part B)1, has delegated authority for acquisitions up to £10m; 

and 

b) The Committee process will be used for acquisitions above £10m 

19. The Council recognises that investing in land and properties is a specialist and potentially 
complex area. The Council will require the services of professional property, legal and 
financial advisers, where appropriate, in order to access specialist skills and resources to 
inform the decision-making process associated with the strategy. 

 
20. The Executive Head of Communities shall lead on potential purchases and development 

opportunities that meet the pre-determined selection criteria contained within the strategy. 

The criteria to evaluate potential acquisitions is attached as Annexe A. The Asset 

Management team will identify opportunities based on the selection criteria, will co-ordinate all 

necessary due diligence in accordance with the Acquisition Procedure (Annexe B), and will 

present a business case for challenge and scrutiny to the relevant Committee or Chief 

Executive as required under Financial Regulation 17. 

 

                                                           
1 Standing Order 46 prescribes that: (i) if the Council is in a state of no overall control (i.e. where no single 
political group or a coalition of groups has an absolute majority of seats) such consultation shall be with the 
Leaders, or their nominated representatives, of political groups comprising ten or more Councillors; or  
(ii) if a single political group or a coalition of groups forming the Administration has an absolute majority of 
seats, such consultation shall be solely with the Leader(s) of the Council or his / her / their nominated 
representative(s). Page 32



21. CIPFA Guidance requires that elected members and officers involved in the investment 

decision-making process have appropriate capacity, skills and information to enable them to 

take informed decisions as to whether to enter into a specific investment. In addition, it places 

a duty on the council to ensure that advisors negotiating deals on behalf of the Council are 

aware of the core principles of the prudential framework and the regulatory regime in which 

the council operates. 

 

22. The Council recognises that it is responsible for property investment decisions at all times and 

will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers. 

 
23. The Executive Head of Communities is to be accountable for the performance of the 

investment property portfolio and will be charged with making recommendations to the Chief 

Executive for acquisitions. 

 

24. Disposal of investment property assets are to be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s 

Financial Regulations and delegated Authorities. The Executive Head of Communities will 

make recommendations to the Strategy & Resources Committee and in accordance with 

officer delegated powers.  

 

25. The Strategy and Resources Committee delegates the Freehold Disposal of assets in the 

General Fund worth less than £250,000 to the Chief Executive, in consultation with Members 

as per Standing Order 46 of the Council’s Constitution (Part B)2 . Leasehold disposals of 

General Fund assets of up to 16 years and with an annual rental valuation of up to £75,000 

are also delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with Members as per Standing 

Order 46 of the Council’s Constitution (Part B)3. 

Risk Assessment 

26. Property investment has its own specific risks, set our below: 

 

a) Property Risks – the property market is cyclical and is affected by the wider economic 

environment. There are also property risks that are specific to a building due to its 

location, condition and quality of the tenants. Mitigation proposed in this policy for these 

risks include diversifying the portfolio (portfolio mix) to include investments that perform 

during different cycles of the economic cycle. The evaluation criteria, diversity of location, 

due diligence tests, approval processes and accountability for implementation are also 

proposed to address property specific risks; 

 

b) Financial Risks – the primary financial risks are borrowing levels, interest rate 

movement, ongoing ability to service debts, the general investment market conditions and 

its effect on rental income. Proposals have included the creation of a fully owned 

subsidiary property investment company, Gryllus Property Ltd and a funding strategy that 

allocates debt and all associated costs to the investment property portfolio so that the net 

revenue benefits to the Council is transparent and can be benchmarked; and 

 

c) Corporate Risks – effective delivery of the Strategy requires staff with the requisite 

expertise, effective arrangements for asset management and the recognition of the 

reputational risks that can come from inappropriate tenants and from legal and 

environmental breaches. In accordance with the Statement of Investment beliefs as we 

                                                           
2 As per footnote 1 on the previous page 
3 As per footnote 1 on the previous page Page 33



are investing public money we will be sensitive to the ethical considerations of local 

residents.   

 

27. The Council assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property. The 

approach is laid out in Annexe A – Investment Evaluation Criteria. 

Liquidity 

28. Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to 

cash at short notice and can take a considerable period to sell in certain market conditions. 

The funding of long-term investments is financed by fixed long term borrowing, so that there is 

no short or medium-term risk to the liquidity of the Council, which would require the Council to 

be forced to liquidate its asset and suffer a loss nor impact upon the Council’s provision of 

services. As these long-term investments are matched by long-term borrowing, it will not be 

necessary to access the invested funds in an emergency. Investments in property are not 

undertaken unless they are secure over the medium-term, have additional socio- economic 

benefits and the target rate of return significantly exceeds the annual cost of borrowing.  

 

Portfolio Mix 

 

29. The medium and long-term aims of this Strategy have been adjusted following the publication 

of the HM Treasury consultation to: 

 

a) Acquire properties mainly within the District in areas with strong sustainable economic 

activity i.e. areas with the environmental and business activities capable of providing 

an economy whereby capital and rental growth over the mid to long term was possible; 

b) When making investments the Strategy and Resources Committee will have regard to 

other economic and social benefits for the residents of Tandridge; and 

c) Achieve a balanced portfolio where after 6 (was 4) years no single class of property, 

ie retail, industrial, office and leisure is larger than 60% and none smaller than 10%, 

other than retail or leisure. 

Contribution 

 

30. The Council has previously invested in commercial property with the intention of making a 

surplus that will be spent on local services and for socio- economic benefits. The portfolio is at 

an early stage of development. 

 

31. Table 1 shows the properties currently held by Tandridge District Council for Investment 

Purposes, by type. 

 

Property by Type Type Value in Accounts 31st March 2020 £m 

Offices Offices 20.591 

Leisure Leisure 0.936 

   

Total  21.527 

 

32. Investments held under Gryllus Holdings are reported separately. 

 

33. Income from Investment Property 

 31st March 2020 
£m 

31st March 2021(forecast) 
£m 

Income 0.746 0.742 

  Page 34



Funding and Financial Performance of the portfolio 

 

34. The Council will fund investment property acquisitions by utilising the most appropriate and 

efficient funding strategy available at the time of purchase. The Council has the option of 

utilising long-term prudential borrowing, capital receipts or reserves. Financing decisions will 

link to the Council’s Capital & Investment Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

35. All new acquisitions are to achieve an appropriate positive return net of borrowing and other 

costs associated with the acquisition. Properties purchased for redevelopment, refurbishment 

or regeneration may not provide an immediate positive return. These will be assessed 

through a comprehensive business case and considered by Strategy & Resources Committee 

 

36. Separate accounts are to be kept for income and expenditure in connection with investment 

property and are to be included in the Annual Report to the Strategy & Resources Committee. 

 

37. Key Indicators have been adopted to monitor performance of the portfolio. Performance will 

be reported against the following indicators along with a property market narrative: 

 

 Total Return – the annual increase in capital value plus income expressed as a 

percentage of the previous year’s capital value (adjusted to include purchases); 

 Effective Return – total return receivable less costs expressed as a percentage of the 

previous year’s capital value; 

 Growth in Asset Value – Percentage increase per year; 

 Income Growth – Percentage increase in gross income per year; and 

 Vacancy Rate – Expressed as a percentage and number of vacant units compared 

with total number of units. This will also be expressed in terms of lost rental. Void 

periods are factored into financial appraisals as part of the assessment criteria. 

 

 2019/20 

Total Return 6.42% 

Effective Return 3.31% 

Growth in Asset Value 281% 

Income Growth 407% 

Vacancy Rate No Vacant buildings.  
Quadrant House is 33% vacant  

 

38. In addition to property specific performance indicators are quantitative indicators that will be 

reported within the Council’s Capital & Investment Strategy and Treasury Management 

Strategy to allow Councillors and the Public to assess a local authority’s total risk exposure as 

a result of property investment decisions. 

 

39. The operating cost of the Council’s internal Strategic Asset Management Team excluding the 

Housing Development Specialists is projected to be c£145k for the year 2020/21, (£c£202k - 

2019/20). The costs reflect the cost of managing the Council’s entire property portfolio and 

functions, not just the assets acquired under this Investment Property Strategy. Additional 

costs may be incurred as a result of the purchase of Investment Properties. Any such costs 

will be factored into the financial appraisals as part of the purchase assessment to ensure that 

anticipated net rates of return are achieved.   

 

 

  
Page 35



Investment Property Strategy - Annexe A  

 

Investment Evaluation Criteria 

40. As with other forms of investment at the most basic level, property investment is a trade-off 
between risk and return. A traditional well diversified property portfolio (spread across 
different property sectors and geographical areas) will deliver long-term rental and capital 
growth with relatively low risk.  

 
41. Prime property in the target region covered by this strategy will typically provide an initial yield 

of between 5 –7% with the additional prospect of capital growth leading to a higher total return 
to the Council. Equivalent /Income yields over longer periods will also be reported.  

 
42. The four main commercial property sectors will be included (industrial, office, retail and 

leisure) and in turn, these will be additionally diversified on criteria including location, the 
lease term and lot size.  This will assist in protecting the councils overall risk return profile 
should an individual property investment cease to be income producing (for example, it is 
undergoing refurbishment or awaiting a new tenant). Residential and mixed used sites will be 
considered using similar criteria albeit for residential investments lease terms and repairing 
obligations are likely to be very different.  Regeneration opportunities and potential 
development sites will be considered using additional criteria, including if a development 
appraisal shows strong potential or if there is strong asset management potential.   

 
43. The following Criteria are to be used to make decisions on acquiring new property investment 

properties: 

 

a. Location – Property is categorised as prime, secondary or tertiary in terms of its 

location desirability. For example, a shop located in the best trading position in the 

town would be prime, where as a unit on a peripheral neighbourhood shopping 

parade would be considered tertiary; 

b. Tenant covenant – the financial strength of a tenant determines the security of 

the property is rental income. A financially weak tenant increases the likelihood 

that the property will fall vacant. The minimum acceptable financial strength for 

any given tenant will be determined through financial appraisal of company 

accounts and the use of appropriate methods of risk assessment and credit 

scoring. To minimise management and risk, the preference will be for single 

occupancy investments wherever possible; 

c. Lease terms – the lease is to be free from unencumbered/onerous terms. The 

lease must have mechanisms for the rent to be periodically reviewed to take into 

account inflation and upward market movement; 

d. Occupational lease length – the lease term will determine the duration of the 

tenant’s contractual obligation to pay rent. The most attractive investments offer a 

long lease with a strong tenant covenant. The lease term will reflect any tenant 

break clause; 

e. Building quality – a brand-new or recently refurbished building will not usually 

require capital expenditure for at least 15 years. This is attractive for income 

investors requiring long-term rental income with a minimum of ongoing capital 

expenditure; 

f. Tenure and Title anything less than a freehold acquisition will need to be 

appropriately reflected in the price. The legal title is required to be clean and free 

from any onerous conditions.; 

g. Tenant repairing obligations. – Under a full repairing and insuring lease (FRI), 

the tenant is responsible for the building’s interior and exterior maintenance/repair. 

The obligation is limited to the building’s interior under an internal repairing and 

insuring lease (IRI). The preference will be to favour FRI terms (or FRI by way of 
Page 36



service charge i.e. all costs relating to occupation repairs are born by the tenants 

administered through a service charge; and 

h. Lot size – to maintain portfolio balance the preference will be for no single 

property to exceed £25 million for a single let property. 

In addition, it must -   
 

a. Have passed a building and plant survey; 
b. Show a positive return after making allowance for financing costs, borrowing 

repayments and other associated costs; 
c. Be supported by an Independent RICS Red Book Valuation; and 
d. Be accompanied by a full business case report prepared by the Head of 

Strategic Asset Management and other officers where relevant. 
 
Each potential property investment will undergo a quantitative and qualitative appraisal 
and risk assessment to establish portfolio suitability and the legal and financial 
implications of the purchase.  
 
All due diligence findings will be included in the reporting procedure. The business case is 
to include reference to all areas above, the financial modelling, a risk assessment matrix 
and Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) analysis. 
 
An investment opportunity that does not meet the minimum criteria and investment criteria 
may have separate investment or regeneration benefits and therefore may be considered 
separately under the regeneration and development stream of the strategy.  
 
For a regeneration or development opportunity to be considered by the Council it must: 
 

a. Deliver a rate of return commensurate with the deemed level of risk associated 
with the investment. The financial returns from regeneration activities may be 
capital rather than revenue. If the returns are capital all the full costs will be 
capitalised; and 

b. Be accompanied by a full business case prepared by the Head of Strategic Asset 
Management and other officers where relevant. 

 

Some of the above criteria may be relaxed if the property is of strategic value to the Council 

and has gained Strategy & Resources Committee Approval. Strategic Value may be seen 

where a property is close to significant Council land ownership, a property gives economic 

benefits through Council ownership and or there are opportunities to change the use in 

accordance with Council priorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 37



Investment Property Strategy   - Annexe B   

Acquisition Procedure 

44. Acquisition of new investment properties is to follow the following process:  

Activity Acquisition Stage and 
Timeline Guide 

a) Property identified as a potential investment by Asset 
Management or by Agents 

b) Property to be discussed with in house Legal team for 
initial review 

c) Executive Head of Communities to notify Chief 
Executive and the Investment Property Group 
(includes Head of Legal & Head of Finance) of 
potentially suitable property and summarise to seek 
views 

d) If possible, obtain desktop valuation from suitably 
qualified and experienced Valuer 

e) Review the valuation against the cost of Borrowing 
with Finance 

f) Finance to undertake search of tenant to ascertain the 
tenant’s current financial status 

g) Finance to produce initial financial appraisal 
 

Initial Review 
2 to 3 weeks 

h) Make offer for property, subject where appropriate to 
any of the following: 

 Contract 

 Approval by Chief Executive, or relevant 

Committee  

 RICS Red Book valuation carried out by 

external Registered Valuer (independent of 

introducing Agent)  

 Searches 

 Legal due diligence to include receipt and 

analysis of all leases to determine landlord’s 

financial obligations 

 Disclosure of freehold title and review to ensure 

clear of any onerous restrictions. 

 Pre-acquisition survey by chartered building 

surveyor to include, if appropriate, structural, 

mechanical and electrical survey 

 Internal inspection 

 Valid Energy Performance Certificate 

 Disability Discrimination Assessment if 

appropriate 

 Environmental desktop study if search suggests 

one is appropriate 

 Asbestos Survey if appropriate 

 Resolution of any TUPE transfer implications 

 VAT 

 Insurance requirements 

 Tax implications 

If offer accepted: 

Under Offer  
3 to 4 weeks 

Page 38



i) Instruct legal services to deal with contract 
documentation, searches and legal due diligence 

j) Instruct valuation 
k) Instruct surveys 
l) If appropriate based on any of the above, propose 

adjustment to purchase price to reflect the monetary 
value of any issues discovered. 

 

m) Complete any outstanding surveys/ M&E reports and 
resolve all contractual matters before exchange 

n) Complete TDC Strategic Asset Management 
Acquisition Checklist 

o) Complete full Business Case for approval in 
accordance with Financial Regulation 17.  

p) Following agreement of terms and before instructing 
exchange of contract prepare Record of Officer 
Delegated Decision Notice and advise Leader of the 
Opposition and Ward Councillors if located in the 
District prior to publication date 

q) Arrange for transfer of funds 
r) Arrange Insurance Cover  
s) Exchange Contracts, if not simultaneous with 

Completion 

Exchange 
1-2 weeks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

t) Complete purchase. All Documents and Management 
handed over to Asset Management to take forward as 
appropriate.  

Completion  
1 day 

 

45. Newly purchased property acquired under this strategy would be added to the existing 

portfolio. The Asset Management Team would undertake management to maintain and 

improve the performance of an investment property; or additional specialist resources may 

need to be brought in as required.  

Disposal Procedure 

46. Properties will be considered for sale based on their performance and fit for the portfolio. 

 

47. Any property considered for sale should be appropriately marketed. If an off-market approach 

is made and considered the property would not be sold unless the price offered is in excess of 

an independent Red Book Valuation to support such a decision  

 

48. A property will be disposed of in accordance with the Financial Regulations of the Council’s 

Constitution and in line with the Delegated Authority provisions in place. The Executive Head 

of Communities will make recommendations to the Strategy & Resources Committee and in 

accordance with officer delegated powers.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



APPENDIX B 

CAPITAL STRATEGY PRINCIPLES 

Executive Leadership Team led by the Chief Executive lead the strategic direction of capital 
investment for the Council.  
 
All schemes already approved in the 2020/24 Continuing Capital Programme or contractually 
committed will be supported and sufficient resources will be provided to enable them to proceed 
or complete. These schemes are presented in Appendix E, Current Capital Priorities. 
 
A capital project sponsor for a new bid must also be able to demonstrate that a rigorous process 
of options appraisal has been followed, requiring evidence of need, cost, risk, outcomes and 
methods of financing. Capital investment proposals which will result in a revenue cost saving, 
income generation or efficiency are encouraged. The Executive Leadership Team has a clear 
role in ensuring that all the key questions have been asked at the initiation stage of a project. 
 
All capital investment decisions will be made with reference to Council objectives and regional 
strategies and, only after a positive contribution to one or more of the objectives has been 
demonstrated, is a project to be considered for resource allocation. There will be no ring-fencing 
of capital receipts to specific projects. Any in year Capital scheme approvals will be included in 
the current Capital Programme and reported to the relevant Committee. 
 
The Capital Strategy will support the implementation of the approved Investment Property 
Strategy by the allocation of resources and facilitating the introduction of activities required to 
promote the objectives of the strategy.  
 
For the purposes of preparing the Capital Programme for 2021/22, an assumption has been 
made that any funding relating to slippage in capital projects at the end of 2020/21 will be carried 
forward into 2021/22 to fund the completion of the projects. However, carry forward of slippage 
will not be automatic; a robust business case and spending profile will need to be made for any 
carry forward funds. Where an underspend occurs, this will be returned to the Council Capital 
resources and will be used to fund new capital priorities. Funding for any overspends will be 
taken from the Council’s uncommitted capital resources. 
 
As well as using traditional funding mechanisms to finance capital schemes, the Council will also 
consider the use of new initiatives and develop these options if it is considered financially 
advantageous in the context of the Council achieving its capital investment objectives.  
 
The Council is conscious that the Government could in the future introduce a range of grant 
funding opportunities for which bids must be submitted at short notice, some of which may have a 
matched funding requirement. The Council will respond as it considers appropriate to bidding 
opportunities, ensuring that bids are submitted which align with its objectives and capital 
investment priorities and that matched funding requirements are considered on a scheme by 
scheme basis with resource requirements prioritised accordingly. 
  
The Council will work in a collaborative manner with Surrey County Council, Surrey Police & 
NHS. 
 
Regard will be given during the appraisal process to ensure that the Council’s capital investment 

priorities are achieved. The Capital Programme 2020-2024 set out at Appendix F reflects 
the Council’s current Strategies and Priorities. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
APPENDIX C 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Executive Leadership Team  
 
Executive Leadership Team (ELT), which comprises the Executive Heads of each Department 
lead by the Chief Executive, is the officer body for Capital Investment development and planning 
and is charged with bringing forward funded capital expenditure plans for approval by the 
Strategy and Resources Committee. The Committee considers capital expenditure and funding 
plans, monitors performance through a series of regular capital monitoring reports and 
recommends the annual Capital Programme to Council for approval. 
 
 
All capital investment will be commissioned on the recommendation of the ELT which will enable 
any expenditure and it’s funding to be aligned with the Council’s Key Capital Priorities and 
funding sources. Partners, from both the public and private sector will be at regional and local 
levels as well as at a District level.  
 
Approval of Capital Investment 
 
Within the Council, a concept for a potential capital project will originate from, or at least be 
‘owned’ by the Executive Head. The ‘owner’ should prepare or direct the preparation of a 
Strategic Business Case (SBC) for the proposed project. The Strategic Business Case outlining 
the initial idea or ‘concept’ for a project should be submitted to ELT for consideration.  
 
If ELT is satisfied that the proposal meets investment criteria, it will be given approval to progress 
to Stage 2 of the process – the completion of an Outline Business Case (OBC). 
 
The OBC builds on the SBC providing more detailed information including the benefits that could 
be realised focusing on the links to the Council’s Capital Investment Priorities and the proposed 
outcomes and may include several options to deliver the proposed benefits. The OBC will be 
submitted to the ELT for consideration, and if it is satisfied with the proposal will give guidance for 
the development of a preferred option. 
  
Stage 3 of the process entails the completion of a Final Business Case (FBC) which will then be 
submitted to the ELT for final consideration. Again, building on the OBC, the FBC will contain 
evidence of a:  
 

 Full option appraisal; 

 Detailed financial analysis of all costs/income including how the project is financially 
sustainable and that any adverse revenue implications can be dealt with within existing 
budgets; 

 Robust delivery plan including how the chosen option delivers the highest impact in 
achieving the required outcomes with identified key project milestones enabling progress 
review. Included within the delivery plan should be proposed consultation arrangements, 
value for money assessment equality and environmental impact assessments; 

 Risk assessment and that appropriate actions to negate these risks have been identified; 

 Full exit strategy where the project involves a disposal; and 

 Method of procurement that represents value for money.  
 
Depending on the circumstances of the bid for resources, ELT has the discretion to vary the 
three-stage review process and omit one or more of the stages. Once Final Business Cases have 
been agreed, these bids will be prioritised against agreed criteria  

The results of this process will be presented to Members each year as part of the capital budget 
setting process, or during the year if projects come forward outside the normal timeframe. 

Page 41



Service Challenge & Review, Efficient Use of Assets 
  
With regard to the review of operational assets, the Asset Management Team and services 
continue to work closely with service managers alongside wider public and third sector partners 
to ensure that portfolios are best fit for purpose and efficient usage is maximised.  
  
The Chief Executive and ELT will oversee any acquisition and disposal of land and property 
assets and monitors the progress of any corporate disposals and performance of the investment 
portfolio. 

In terms of acquisition of property there is a specific process for this under Financial Regulation 
17 to enable proposals to progress in year. Details of this are set out in the Investment Property 
Strategy. 

Performance Monitoring of Capital Programme  
 
The capital expenditure investment approach above is supported by a strong programme 
management process to ensure a coordinated corporate approach. This will ensure that 
investments are planned, managed and delivered prudently.  
 
ELT has a remit to review the financial performance of the capital programme and it receives a 
monthly monitoring report. In addition, financial monitoring reports will be considered by Service 
Committees periodically throughout the year, together with a capital outturn report. Issues that 
have been considered and agreed at ELT can be reported to Service Committees as necessary 
via the regular financial monitoring reports.  
 
The undertaking of the detailed annual review of the capital programme provides the opportunity 
to review all schemes or focus on specific areas of concern.  
 
Where a potential cost overrun has been identified, ELT will explore possible solutions in detail. It 
will also consider any underspending or identified surplus resources which can be added to the 
central pool of resources. ELT may also suggest a reallocation of resources to other projects. 
  
Where there is a delay in the commitment of programme/project resources, the ELT will require 
project managers to report the reasons for the delay and consider whether it would be 
appropriate to recommend the decommissioning of the project and the reallocation of un-ring-
fenced resources to other projects.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX D 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/24 

 

Proposed Capital Programme 2021/22 2022/23  2023/24

Total 

2021-24

Housing HRA

Structural Works 835,000 855,000 830,000 2,520,000

Modernisation & Improvements 439,000 732,000 511,000 1,682,000

Energy Efficiency Works 550,500 559,500 546,000 1,656,000

Service Renewals 685,000 712,500 695,000 2,092,500

Void Works 425,000 425,000 425,000 1,275,000

Health & Safety 190,000 190,000 180,000 560,000

Adaptations for the Disabled 250,000 250,000 250,000 750,000

Essential Structural Works 185,000 185,000 185,000 555,000

Communal Services 30,000 30,000 30,000 90,000

Council House Building 12,700,000 3,705,200 301,200 16,706,400

Housing Management Software 0 0 0 0

   HRA IT Hardware/infrastructure/Projects 264,200 60,600 72,200 397,000

TOTAL HRA 16,553,700 7,704,800 4,025,400 28,283,900

Housing GF

Disabled Facilities Grant 460,000 460,000 460,000 1,380,000

Housing Enabling - General 0 0 0 0

Total- Housing GF 460,000 460,000 460,000 1,380,000

Community Services

Children's Playground Improvements 300,900 179,200 99,500 579,600

Parks, Pavilions & Open Spaces 202,800 114,200 114,500 431,500

Grange Meadow access works 250,000 0 0 250,000

Vehicle Fleet Renewals 450,800 167,900 5,000 623,700

Collection / Containerisation 0 0 0 0

Car Park Equipment/Maintenance 34,800 34,900 35,000 104,700

Ellice Road Car Park Decking 0 0 0 0

Public Conveniences 550,000 0 0 550,000

Litter Bins 8,200 8,300 8,400 24,900

Roads&Paths at St.Mary's Church Cemetery 0 0 0 0

Land Drainage 13,700 10,000 10,000 33,700

Plant & Machinery Replacement Programme 8,000 8,000 10,000 26,000

Waste Vehicles 0 0 0 0

Garden Waste Bins 25,000 25,000 25,000 75,000

Recycling, food waste and refuse bins 90,000 90,000 90,000 270,000

  Playground Improvements (Match Funding Pot) 20,000 0 0 20,000

  Environmental Health Database contributon 0 0 0 0

Total- Community Services 1,954,200 637,500 397,400 2,989,100

Resources

Council Offices Major Works Programme 0 0 0 0

Customer First/IT 0 0 0 0

IT - Hardware/infrastructure/Customer First Projects 466,600 228,000 271,500 966,100

Investment & Development Fund 0 0 0 0

Quadrant House 4,900,000 0 0 4,900,000

Land / Asset Development 0 0 0 0

Total- Resources 5,366,600 228,000 271,500 5,866,100

Planning Policy

 Capital Contributions from CIL 733,000 330,000 0 1,063,000

Total-Planning Policy 733,000 330,000 0 1,063,000

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 8,513,800 1,655,500 1,128,900 11,298,200

Total Capital Programme 25,067,500 9,360,300 5,154,300 39,582,100

Page 43



APPENDIX E 
SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING 

External Resources 
 
External resources from Central Government and other public-sector bodies can be split into two 
categories:  
 
Un ring-fenced – resources which are delivered through grant that can be utilised on any project 
(albeit that there may be an expectation of use for a specific purpose). This now encompasses 
the vast majority of Government grant funding. 
  
Ring-fenced – resources which are ring-fenced to particular areas and therefore have restricted 
uses. e.g. Disabled Facilities Grant 
 
Where there is a requirement to make an application to an external agency for external funding 
and, when appropriate, to commit Council resources as matched funding to any bid for external 
resources, a business case must be presented to the Executive Leadership Team for approval.  

 
Internal Resources 

Capital Receipts 
  
Section 9 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003 defines a capital receipt as ‘’a sum received by 
the authority in respect of the disposal by it of an interest in a capital asset’’.  
Section 9 (2) of the Act defines a capital asset as ‘’an asset is a capital asset if, at the time of the 
disposal, expenditure on the acquisition of the asset would be capital expenditure’’. Following the 
2015 Spending Review, the MHCLG published statutory guidance on the flexible use of capital 
receipts for a three-year period covering 2016/17 to 2018/19. The guidance allows Local 
Authorities to use capital receipts to offset the revenue cost of transformational projects which are 
expected to deliver future ongoing revenue savings. As part of 2018/19 Provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement, the Secretary of State announced an extension of this flexibility 
for a further three years to 2022.  
 
In 2020/21 the Council intends to use £139,000 of ‘flexible’ capital receipts to fund transformation 
costs. 
 
In 2020/21, the Council intends to use up to £1.5m of general fund capital receipts to fund 
elements of Capital Programme.  

 
In general capital receipts arising from the disposal of housing assets and for which account is 
made in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), are governed by the Local Authorities (Capital 
Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003. In summary the regulations require that 
receipts arising from:  
 
Right to Buy (and similar) sales may be retained to cover the cost of transacting the sales and to 
cover the debt on the properties sold, but a proportion of the remainder must be surrendered to 
Central Government;  
 
However, exemptions from the regulations were published in 2012 which enable the Council to 
use Housing Capital receipts to part finance the replacement of homes for rent sold under the 
renewed Right to Buy, including purchasing, remodelling and new build 
 
HRA disposals may be retained in full provided they are spent on affordable housing, 
regeneration or the paying of housing debt.  
 
Ring-fencing of Capital Receipts 
 

Page 44



The Council will not ring-fence or earmark capital receipts to specific projects, projects will be 
considered on the costs and benefits of the individual project.  
 
Capital Receipts will be retained to support the Capital Programme as a corporate resource.  
 
Availability of Capital Receipts  
 
In considering the 2021 to 2024 capital programme, and given the position regarding capital 
receipts, a prudent approach has been taken and there has been no assumption of any additional 
capital receipts to finance new expenditure over and above those already known amounts 
underpinning the programme.  
 
No additional general fund capital receipts have been anticipated. However as advised above, 
the Council anticipates using up to £1.639m of capital receipts in 2020/21 to support projects.  
 
The level of receipts upon which the programme relies to fund existing and new commitments 
has in the past been affected by the property market which has impacted on the:  
 
i) Ability of the Council to sell assets within the timescale anticipated.  
 
ii) Level of receipt actually generated, which has sometimes been less than originally expected.  
 
Monitoring of capital receipts is undertaken through the ELT and the Corporate Property Board 
(CPB); follow-up actions are initiated to address any comments raised.  
 
Revenue Contributions 
  
A service or the Council may wish to offer some of its revenue budget or reserves to support the 
financing of a capital project.  
 
Leasing  
 
Some of the assets used by the Council are financed by a lease arrangement, for example 
vehicles. With the advent of Prudential Borrowing this source of financing is less attractive. As it 
is usually generally a more expensive form of borrowing and there are usually costs which arise 
when vehicles, plant and equipment is returned in poor condition. Therefore, it is the Councils 
policy not to lease unless it can be demonstrated that leasing will offer value for money, when 
options are appraised.  
 
Section 106 Agreements  
 
In considering an application for planning permission, the Council may seek to secure benefits to 
an area or restrict uses or activities related to a proposed development through the negotiation of 
a ‘planning obligation’ with the developer. Such obligations, authorised by Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990, generally either improve the quality of the development, or 
overcome difficulties which would otherwise result in planning permission being refused. A 
planning obligation must be:  
 
i) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  
 
ii) Directly related to the development; and  
 
iii) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  
 
As such, therefore, the Council may in some instances receive funds to enable it to undertake 
works arising from these planning obligations. Examples of the use of planning obligations are 
the:  
 
i) Provision of affordable housing.  

Page 45



ii) Improvement to community facilities - Public open space/play areas, educational facilities.  

iii) Improved transport facilities.  

iv) Public art.  

v) Renewable energy measures.  

vi) Specific measures to mitigate impact on a local area - parking restrictions, landscaping or 
noise insulation.  
 
The use of any Section 106 funding will be presented to the ELT for review.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy  
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a planning charge based on legislation that came into 
force on 6 April 2010. When adopted, a CIL levy allows the Council to raise contributions from 
new development to help pay for infrastructure that is needed to support planned growth. CIL 
contributions can be used to supplement other funding streams and can wholly or partly fund a 
variety of strategic infrastructure projects ranging from transport, green infrastructure, flood 
defences, education and health, subject to pooling restrictions.  
 
Where a CIL charging schedule is in place, it largely replaces Section 106 Obligations in 
delivering strategic infrastructure. However, S106 would still be used for affordable housing and 
site development-related infrastructure requirements that are deemed necessary to make a 
development acceptable. Some developments would pay both Section 106 and CIL, but they 
would fund different types of infrastructure. Contributions may also be sought for Section 278 of 
the Highways Act where modifications are required to the highways network. 
 
UK Municipal Bonds Agency Plc formerly Local Capital Finance Company   
 
The Local Government Association (LGA) has now set up the Local Capital Finance Company 
(formerly known as the UK Municipal Bonds Agency) the aim of which is to seek to provide 
Councils with a cheaper source of long term borrowing and to introduce sector owned diversity 
into the Local Government lending market. The Council will keep under review the availability and 
cost of funds from the Company as an alternative source of finance with a view to borrowing at an 
appropriate time if terms are preferential. 
 
Borrowing 
 
The Council will investigate opportunities to resource capital projects using prudential borrowing 
where plans are sustainable, affordable and prudent. Full appraisal will take place to ensure that, 
where appropriate, sufficient revenue returns are generated to cover the cost of borrowing. This 
will be especially important when undertaking property acquisitions under the Investment 
Property Strategy where, in addition, a revenue income stream is required to support the revenue 
budget. 
  
Where it is considered that Prudential Borrowing is the appropriate method of funding it will 
require additional revenue budget to finance the interest and minimum revenue provision.  
 
Strategy and Resources Committee will review the detailed capital expenditure plans before 
allocations of resources are committed to ensure that the costs of prudential borrowing are 
understood and affordable.  
 
The Council is able to take advantage of the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) certainty rate, 
whereby there is a 20 basis points discount on standard loans from the PWLB under the 
prudential borrowing regime for authorities which provide improved information on their long term 
borrowing and associated capital spending plans. The obvious benefit to the Council of the 
certainty rate is reflected in reduced Treasury Management borrowing costs in relation to any 
PWLB borrowing undertaken.  
 

Page 46



APPENDIX F 

ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 2021/22  

 

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay that 

debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is 

known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum 

previous to 2017/18. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the 

Department for Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue 

Provision (the CLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018. 

 

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period that is 

either reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits, 

or, in the case of borrowing supported by revenue grant, reasonably commensurate with the 

period implicit in the determination of that grant. 

 

MHCLG regulations have been issued which require the Full Council to approve the MRP 

Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as there 

is a prudent provision. 

 

The Council’s MRP policy will be Asset Life Method. This basis is subject to review and changes 

in line with the Councils Treasury Management Strategy and approved Prudential Indicators 

which are revised annually. 

 

Capital expenditure incurred during 2021/22 will be fully subject to a MRP charge from 2022/23 

onwards or in the financial year after the asset becomes operational whichever is the latest. This 

ensures that MRP is only charged to the first, full operational year of the asset’s life. 

 

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement:- 

 

For all unsupported borrowing (General Fund) the MRP Policy will be; Asset Life Method. 

 

Under this method MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in accordance with the 

regulations. This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the 

asset’s life. 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



APPENDIX G 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT BELIEFS 

Assets 

There are 3 pools of assets which have different objectives and constraints - 

 Short-term Pool: short-term cash management, representing monies that need to be 

available for immediate funding needs of the Council, typically up to a period of 1 

year. 
 

 Medium-term Pool: where funds are not immediately required but may be required 

over a 1 to 5 year period. These investments will achieve a return of approximately 

cash base rate plus 2% as an indicative target. 
 

 Strategic Investment Pool: where funds can be invested for the long term (greater 

than 3 years), to deliver returns in real terms, aiming to achieve additional revenue to 

support front line services of the council. These investments will seek to achieve the 

prevailing consumer price inflation (CPI) rate plus 3%. 

Aims 

The 3 pools have different aims. In the list above –  

 Short-term pool: represents short-term liquid assets, which are invested to provide 

immediate liquidity. To manage risk, these assets are held in a way that achieves a 

measure of diversification.  Where appropriate and after member input, the officers 

will from time to time investigate whether there is any possibility to move some of 

these funds into the medium term pool in the search for additional returns.  
 

 Medium-term pool: is aimed at preserving the value of the funds in real terms in the 

medium term, assumed to be 1 to 5 years. Pure equity investment would generally 

not be an appropriate form of investment for the medium-term pool, but balanced 

portfolios incorporating an equity element may be appropriate.  
 

 Strategic Investment pool: is aimed at preserving the value of funds in real terms in 

the medium to long term, while achieving revenue well in excess of the borrowing 

costs for the council. These investments will mainly be financed through external 

borrowing. Such investments may be very long term in nature and it is recognised 

that liquidity will be restricted. Timing of purchases and disposals is vital to preserve 

fund value. 

Key beliefs 

The aims for each pool are the key drivers for asset allocation 

Of the three pools of assets referred to above: 

 The Short-term pool is roughly matched to immediate or very short-term cash 

requirements. Therefore, the nominal value and liquidity must be preserved.  
 

 Medium-term pool has no specifically defined liabilities. The prime aim is capital 

preservation in real terms to achieve an enhanced return over 1–5 years.  
 

Page 48



 Strategic Investment pool represents long-term assets and any investment strategy 

must seek at least to maintain the value of these assets after allowing for inflation, as 

well as to generate revenue in excess of the loan interest cost plus the minimum 

revenue provision (MRP). It is acknowledged that this cannot be achieved without 

accepting some risk. Where there is some conflict between any of these aims, the 

need to generate income exceeding the loan rate plus Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP) for the specific investment will be paramount. 
 

Asset allocation is the main driver of performance 

We believe that the performance of investment markets is the dominant aspect of investment.  

Attempting to “time” markets is rarely successful as market timing introduces risk, without the 

expectation of return, so variations in asset allocation will be driven by other considerations rather 

than tactical return generation. These considerations as determined in the over-arching Treasury 

Management Strategy includes factors such as; credit risk, counter-party strength, security, 

liquidity and yield as well as interest rate risk and inflation. Asset allocation in multiple classes will 

also be a factor.  

Costs matter and need to be managed in order to achieve value for money 

Costs can materially impact the long-term value of the investment portfolio and are an important 

component in assessing different investment strategies and the managers appointed to invest 

Council assets. This does not necessarily imply that costs need to be minimised: there are often 

circumstances when paying extra costs will be more than compensated by rewards.  

Careful management of costs is important in achieving the highest quality of returns on all our 

portfolios. 

Investment decisions should reflect wider stakeholder views 

Our stakeholders, including local residents, expect the Council to follow the highest ethical 

standards in all its activities. Strategy & Resources Committee members will therefore act in 

accordance with the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s seven principles of public life, 

namely selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. We 

expect the investment professionals we deal with to act in a similar manner. 

We are always conscious that we are investing public money and we will be sensitive to the 

ethical considerations of local residents. 

Investment goals and performance measures need to be clearly articulated to ensure 

accountability 

A key measure of success is the delivery of investment performance. It is important that the 

investment goal and the performance measures used are clearly set out to ensure full 

accountability, in accordance with the aims of each pool, which are respectively liquidity, capital 

preservation in capital terms and capital preservation in real terms with yields in excess of 

borrowing costs including MRP as appropriate. 

Risk is multi-faceted and complex 

The only investment opportunities that provide no “risk” in the sense of no possibility of 

unexpected negative outcomes are those that will provide negative inflation-adjusted returns. It is 

therefore necessary to accept some risk if positive inflation-adjusted returns are to be achieved.  

A selection of appropriate performance measures will allow visibility that adequate compensation 

for risk taken has been achieved. 
Page 49



A long-term investment horizon is an advantage and a responsibility 

The long-term horizon for the Strategic Investment pool brings with it the responsibility to take an 

appropriately long-term approach to assessing the success or otherwise of investment strategies 

and the advisers hired to implement our strategies.  

The Strategic Investment pool and (to a lesser extent) medium-term pool have long to medium 

horizons which provide additional investment opportunity. This potentially allows the acceptance 

of less liquidity on a portion of assets. This may include extended periods of underperformance 

due to the long term nature of investments in the context of the aims described above.  

The Strategic Investment pool will mainly invest in property 

Given the constraints that apply to Local Councils, most of the Strategic Investment pool will be 

invested in property. 

The first priority for investment will be property within the District boundary, a secondary priority 

will be for property outside of the District as long as this is within accepted guidelines for Local 

Council property investments. 

When making investments the Strategy & Resources Committee will have regard to other 

economic and social benefits for the residents of Tandridge District. 

Investment strategies and complexity need to be consistent with the governance resources 

available 

One of the most significant constraints on investment strategy is the level of governance 

resources available. The complexity of strategies employed needs to be consistent with the 

resources available to manage them. In practice, this will normally mean that simple solutions will 

be preferred to complex ones unless there is a compelling reason to contemplate the complexity: 

this will normally be driven by a conviction that there are significant additional returns to be 

achieved and obtaining suitable outside professional advice to support this conviction. 

What funds are available for investing? 

In determining the allocation of funds to each of the 3 pools (short, medium-term and Strategic 

Investment pool), the Strategy & Resources Committee will, on a regular basis, consider relevant 

budgets, cash flow forecasts and other medium term financial projections. The main allocation 

will be the annual budget setting process.  

Allocation of funds on this basis will normally be reviewed on at least, an annual basis, to tie in 

with relevant financial projections and quarterly reports from external investment advisers.  

In terms of the allocation process for the medium-term pool, the Strategy & Resources 

Committee will have the authority to select investments in line with our investment beliefs. For 

investments through Gryllus, these will be in accordance with the company’s individual 

investment objectives as an entity. 

Risk Management 

We will be proactive in looking at risk including assessing this in terms of the risk framework set 

out in both the Asset (Capital) Investment and the Treasury Management Strategy. These 

strategies will be approved annually by Council and will be updated as necessary to cover risk 

Page 50



including credit risk, counter-party risk, timing risks around purchasing and disposing of strategic 

assets; and the over-riding public sector investment principle of security and liquidity over yield.   

Counter parties will only be selected with acceptable credit ratings from the three main rating 

agencies: Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investor Service inc and Standard and Poor’s Financial 

Services LLC. 

In respect of actual investment performance and having taken any external advice considered 

appropriate, the Council will monitor and review performance benchmarks relevant to each 

investment pool and in accordance with the recommended CIPFA Investment Code of Practice. 

The Council will approve an annual Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) which will be 

approved annually by Council and incorporated within the Budget and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 51



APPENDIX H 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of 

expenditure, balances and reserves. During the first half of the current financial year, the 

Council's average investment balance has been around £25m-30m and the cash flow 

projections shows this pattern is expected to continue in the forthcoming year. Investments 

are made with reference to the core balance, future cash flow requirements and the outlook 

for interest rates. 
 
The Council's investment policy has regard to the M H CLG's Guidance on Local Government 

Investments ("the Investment Guidance") and the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 

Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes ("the CIPFA TM Code"). 

The Council's investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, and then return.  
 
In accordance with the above guidance and to minimise the risk to investments, the Council 

applies minimum acceptable credit criteria to generate a list of highly creditworthy 

counterparties which will provide security of investments, enable diversification and minimise 

risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the Short-Term and Long-Term 

ratings. 

 

An investment time limit has to be set with regard to the Council's liquidity requirements and to 

reduce the need for early sale of an investment. For the year 2020/21, the proposed limit 

of investments for over 1 year is £14m. 
 
 
The Council's officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the quality 

of an institution and that it is important to assess continually and monitor the financial sector on 

both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 

which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information that reflects 

the opinion of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors and monitor 

changes in market variables and pricing with the credit ratings in order to generate optimal 

returns. 
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other 

such information pertaining to the banking sector to establish the most robust scrutiny process 

on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 
 
The primary principle governing the Council’s treasury investment criteria is the security of 

its investments, closely followed by liquidity (i.e. repayment of money) and then finally 

the actual return on the investment. These factors in that order are a key consideration. 

After this main principle, the Council will ensure that: 
 

(i) It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it will 

invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security and 

monitoring their security; and 
 
(ii)   It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out 

procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may prudently be 
committed. These procedures also apply to the Council's prudential indicators 
covering the maximum principal sums invested. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer (s151) will use the services of the Council’s Treasury management 

adviser currently, Link Asset Services, to provide advice on an up to date counterparty list in 

compliance with the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for 

approval as necessary. We are also better engaging with our advisers and meeting with them 

Page 52



much more regularly in the future, particularly when there is a significant borrowing or 

investment decision to be made. 

 
The Council takes into account the following relevant matters when proposing 

counterparties: 
 

(i) the financial position and jurisdiction of the institution; 

(ii) the market pricing of credit default swaps for the institution; 
(iii) any implicit or explicit Government support for the institution; 

(iv) the use of two of the major credit rating agencies external short and long-term credit ratings 

to assess creditworthiness; 

(v) Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries; 

and 

(vi)   core Tier 1 capital ratios. 

 

NB- Definition of Credit Default Swap – CDS are a financial instrument for swapping the risk of 

debt default. Credit default swaps may be used for emerging market bonds, mortgage-backed 

securities, corporate bonds and local government bond. The buyer of a credit default swap pays 

a premium for effectively insuring against a debt default. 
 
The MHCLG Guidance on Local Government Investments made under section 15(1) of the 

Local Government Act 2003, places restrictions on Local authorities in relation to 

investments.  Investments fall in to one of the three categories; Specified Investments, Loans 

and Non-Specified Investments  

 

A specified investment is defined as an investment which satisfies all of the 

conditions below: 

 

(i) the investment is denominated in sterling and any payments or repayments in respect 

of the investment are payable only in sterling;  

(ii) the investment is not a long-term investment. This means that the local authority has a 

contractual right to repayment within 12 months, either because that is the expiry term of 

the investment or through a non-conditional option; 

(iii)    the making of the investment is not defined as capital expenditure under Regulation 25 

of the Capital Finance regulations (2013); and 

(iv)  the investment is made with a body or in an investment scheme of high credit 

quality; or with the UK Government, a UK Local Authority or parish/community 

council. 
 

Loans- Authorities may provide loans to local enterprises, local charities, wholly owned 

companies and joint ventures as part of a wider strategy for delivering economic growth and 

delivering services for the Council.  

 

A non-specified investment is any investment that is not a loan and does not meet the criteria to 

be treated as a specified investment. These principally relates to non–financial investments which 

an Authority holds primarily or partially to generate a profit.  
 

Credit Rating of Treasury Management Investments 
 
The criteria for providing a pool of high quality short, medium and long-term, cash based 

investment counterparties along with the time and monetary limits for institutions on the 

Council's counterparty list are in the table below. The Council defines the following as being of 

“high credit quality” for making specified investments, subject to the monetary and time limits 

shown. 

 

Page 53



 

1 banks within the same group ownership are treated as one bank for limit purposes 
2 where the bank is used as a reserve account the criteria will exclude consideration of the long-

term credit rating 
3 Minimum Credit rating required, is expressed as a Fitch rating or the equivalent S&P or Moodys 

ratings etc 
4 The Council has placed an overall limit on pooled funds of £16m 

 

The majority of the Council’s investments will be made for relatively short periods and in highly 

credit rated investments, giving priority to security and liquidity ahead of yield. In order that the 

Council is not at risk of a large single default, the maximum that will be lent to any one 

organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £2 million or £4 million per pooled fund. A 

group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit 

purposes. 

 

Money market Funds and Pooled Funds 

 

Money market funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of instruments similar to those 

used by the Council. They have the advantage of providing wide diversification of investment 

risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager.   

 

Funds that offer same-day liquidity and a constant net asset value will be used as an alternative 

to instant access call accounts, while funds whose value changes with market prices and/or have 

a notice period will be used for longer investment periods. 

 

Risk assessment and credit ratings 

 

 

High Credit Quality 

Individual 

Monetary 

limit(1) 

Aggregate 

Monetary  

Limit 

Fitch Credit 

rating(3) 

UK Central Government No Limit No Limit Not applicable 

UK Local Authorities including PCC’s £2m each LT: £8m Not applicable 

Banks(1) operating in the UK(2) 
£2m each 

LT: £8m 

ST: None 

LT:A- 

ST: F1  

Overseas Banks (subject to Sovereign Rating 

AA-) 
£2m each £8m 

LT:A- 

ST: F1 

UK building societies with an asset base > £1bn 
£2m each  

LT: BBB+ 

ST:F1 

UK building societies with an asset base < £1bn 
£1m each  

LT: A- 

ST:F1 

Money Market Funds  £4m each  ST: AAA 

Ultra Short Dated Bond Fund £4m each  ST: AAA 

    

Pooled Funds(4)    

Bond Funds without credit ratings £4m each £8m Not applicable 

Property Funds without credit ratings £4m each £4m Not applicable 

Multi Asset Funds £4m each £8m Not applicable 

Long Term Loans to small business ranked no 

lower than average risk by independent credit 

analysis 

£100,000 £6m Not applicable 

Company shares to participate in the UK 

Municipal Bonds Agency 
£10,000 £10,000 Not applicable 

Page 54



The Council uses long-term credit ratings from at least two of the main credit rating agencies to 

assess the risk of investment default. The lowest available credit rating will be used to determine 

credit quality. 

 

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality) through to D 

(indicating default).  Ratings of BBB- and above are described as investment grade, while ratings 

of BB+ and below are described as speculative grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set 

to ensure that it is unlikely that the Council will hold speculative grade investments directly, 

despite the risk of repeated downgrades. The Council may invest in bond funds that hold 

speculative grade bonds themselves, giving the Council an indirect exposure, but the risk is 

mitigated by the high level of diversification and the expert fund management. 

 

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify 

changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails 

to meet the approved investment criteria then: 

 no new investments will be made; 
 

 any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be; and 
 

 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 
with the affected counterparty. 

 

Other information on the security of investments 

 

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment 

default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of 

the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements and 

reports in the quality financial press. No investments will be made with an organisation if there 

are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet the above criteria. 

 

If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high credit quality” are 

available to invest the Council’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with Money 

Market Funds, the UK Government, via the Debt Management Office for example, or with other 

local authorities. This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned but will 

protect the principal sum invested. 

 

Foreign countries 

 

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or AA+ sovereign credit 

rating from two of the three major credit rating agencies, and to a maximum of £2 million per 

foreign country. Investments in countries whose lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited 

to one year’s duration. No country limit will apply to investments in the UK, irrespective of the 

sovereign credit rating. 

 

Overseas subsidiaries of foreign banking groups will normally be assessed according to the 

country of domicile of the parent organisation. However, Santander UK plc (a subsidiary of 

Spain’s Banco Santander) will be classed as a UK bank due to its substantial UK franchises and 

the arms-length nature of the parent-subsidiary relationships. 

 

Sovereign credit rating criteria and foreign country limits will not apply to investments in 

multilateral development banks (e.g. the European Investment Bank and the World Bank) or 

other supranational organisations (e.g. the European Union). 

 

Liquidity management 

 Page 55



The Council uses financial systems to determine the maximum period for which funds may 

prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-

estimated and payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to 

borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Decisions on long-term 

investments are set by reference to the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy and cash flow 

forecast. 

 

Interest rate exposures 

 

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on 

fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as net principal borrowed will be: 

 

 2020/21 

£m 

2021/22 

£m 

2022/23 

£m 

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures 215 285 285 

Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures 50 60 60 

 

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed for the whole 

financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial year are classed as variable rate. 

 

Risk Implications - principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 

 

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 

seeking early repayment of its investments. The recommendation for the upper limit of principal 

sums maturing beyond the year end is £16m, as shown below: 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £16m £16m £16m 

 

Investment training 

 

The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in investment management are 

assessed annually as part of the staff appraisal process, and additionally when the 

responsibilities of individual members of staff change. Staff regularly attend training courses, 

seminars and conferences provided by treasury management advisors and CIPFA. A regular 

programme for the training of Members responsible for Treasury Management is being provided. 

 

Other Financial Policies  

 

Charging interest to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)- Following the reform of housing 

finance, the Council is free to adopt its own policy on sharing interest costs and income between 

the General Fund and HRA. The CIPFA Code recommends that Authorities state their policy on 

this matter each year in their treasury management strategy. 

 

The Council is required to notionally split each of its existing long-term loans into General Fund 

and HRA pools. Any new long-term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety to one pool 

or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-term loans (e.g. premiums 

and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/credited to the respective revenue account. 

Transfers between the General Fund and HRA will be made at the Authority’s average short-term 

interest rate on investments, adjusted for credit risk.  

Financial Derivatives-  In the absence of any explicit legal power to do so, the Authority will not 

use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and options). Derivatives 

embedded into loans and investments, including pooled funds and forward starting transactions, 

Page 56



may be used, and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk 

management strategy. 

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive- The Authority has registered as a professional client 

with its providers of financial services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, 

allowing it access to a greater range of services but without the greater regulatory protections 

afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury 

management activities, the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) believes this to be the 

most appropriate status. 

 

Business models- Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments 

depends on the Authority’s “business model” for managing them. The Authority aims to achieve 

value from its internally managed treasury investments by a business model of collecting the 

contractual cash flows and therefore, where other criteria are also met, these investments will 

continue to be accounted for at amortised cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SUMMARY INVESTMENT AND BORROWING 

POSITION 

 

Investment Sub Committee – 15 January 2021 

 

Report of:  Anna D’Alessandro – Chief Finance Office (Section 151) 

Simon Jones – Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Deputy S151) 

Purpose:  For information 

Publication status: Unrestricted  

Wards affected: All 

 

Executive summary:  

This report updates the Investment Sub Committee on the Council’s investment and 
borrowing position at 31st December 2020. 

 

This report supports the Council’s priority of: Building a better Council/ 
Supporting economic recovery in Tandridge. 

 

Contact officer Simon Jones – Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Deputy S151)  

 sjones@tandridge.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation to Committee: 

That the Sub Committee notes: 

A) the Council’s Investment and Borrowing position at 31st December 2020 as 
set out on Appendix ‘A’ & ‘B’. 

 

B) the individual factsheet for the Long-Term Investments. 
 

C) to review the Funding Circle Funds.  

________________________________________________________ 

Reason for recommendation: 

This report will be reviewed by the Sub Committee, which provides an update on 

the Council’s investment and borrowing position. 

________________________________________________________ 

  

Page 59

Agenda Item 5

mailto:sjones@tandridge.gov.uk


 

1 Introduction and background 

1.1 The Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 was reported to the Finance 
Committee on 24th January 2020. This covered the borrowing and 

investment plans for the Council. As detailed in this Strategy, part of the 
treasury management function is to ensure that the cashflow is 
adequately planned and surpluses are invested while allowing for cash to 

be available when needed. Additionally, the treasury management 
function ensures that the Council can meet its capital spending plans. This 

requires the management of longer term cash which will involve the use of 
long or short-term loans, or cash flow surpluses. 

 

2. Summary Investment and Borrowing Position 
 

2.1  A summary of the Council’s investment and borrowing at 31st December 
2020 is set out in Appendix A.  

 
 Total long term financial investments (over 12 months) amount to 

£12.8 million. This is within the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement proposed limit of £16 million.  
 

 Short term investments (less than 12 months) amount to £24 
million. 

 
 The Council also has £22 million in non-financial investments which is 

made up of capital loans to specific service providers and limited 

companies. 
 

 The total amount of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans at 31st 
December 2020 is £104.6 million, This is made up of £43.4 million 
General Fund loans and £61.2 million Housing Revenue Account 

loans. 
 

2.2 It was decided at the 24th January 2020 Investment Sub Committee to 
cease reinvesting in the Funding Circle Peer to Peer loans and to collect all 
funds as they become available. To the end of November 2020, the 

amount collected in relation to the principal element was c£0.77m. 
 

2.3 In the current environment created by the ongoing pandemic, this money 
has not been invested in the Council’s existing long-term investments and 
has been instead used for cashflow purposes. It is proposed that this 

approach remains unchanged with a further review at the Investment Sub 
Committee’s next meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



 

Key implications 

3. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 

3.1 The current forecast is that the investment income budget is likely not to 

be achieved, however this is partially offset by the underspend in the 
costs of borrowing. The net effect of this for the General Fund is an 

adverse variance of £408k. This is mainly due to the decision not to invest 
in Keats and change in the base rate. The bottom-line impact has had to 
be absorbed in the Council’s overall financial position. 

 
3.2 With all high yielding investments there are increased risks. The Council 

manages these risks by continued diversification of its investments. 
 

4. Comments of the Head of Legal Services 

4.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement will need to follow 
the latest codes of practice and the MHCLG and CIPFA guidance. The Council 

has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management. This 
requires the annual production of a Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement and the reporting of treasury management activities at least twice 
a year. The Council fulfils this obligation by reporting to Members more than 
twice a year. 

 

5. Equality 

5.1 The proposals within this report do not have the potential to disadvantage 
or discriminate against different groups with protected characteristics in 
the community. 

 

6. Climate change 

6.1 There are no significant environmental/sustainability implications 
associated with the report. It is however recognised that some Council 

investments may be in companies that are considered to have a 
detrimental impact on the climate, for example oil companies. The Climate 

Change Action Plan that is currently being draw up will have an action 
included to consider our current investment approach and determine if 
changes can or should be made. 

Appendices 

Appendix ‘A’ – Summary of Investments and Borrowing  

Appendix ‘B’ – Market Value of Long Term Investments 

Appendix ‘C’ – Funds latest Factsheets  

 

Background papers 

Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy (presented to 15th 

January 2021 Investment Sub-Committee) 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of  Investments and Borrowing Appendix A

Investment

 Investment 

Amount at        

31/12/2020

Net Asset 

Value at 

31/12/2020 

Note 1

Yield Rate

Note 2

Yield to 

31/12/20

Note 3

Estimated 

Annual Return    

2020/21            

at 31/03/2021

2019/20 

Actual

£ £ % £ £ £

Non - Specified  (Financial Investments)- Long Term 

(over 12 mths)

CCLA Property Fund 4,000,000 4,013,737 4.27 84,719 171,400 185,240

Schroders Bond Fund 3,000,000 2,927,632 4.50 33,903 131,700 124,418

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,000,000 2,817,616 4.50 84,148 126,800 137,531

Funding Circle 1,261,826 1,091,959 4.50 55,666 65,000 78,011

CCLA Diversification Fund 2,000,000 1,971,862 3.36 35,972 66,300 66,284

Sub Total Non-specified (Financial Investments) 13,261,826 12,822,805 294,408 561,200 591,484

Non - Specified (Non-Financial Investments)- Long 

Term (over 12 mths)

Gryllus Property Company Loan - Maidstone 2,394,000 2,394,000 5.81 0 139,100 139,023

Tandridge Leisure Ltd- Refurbishment Loan (TTLC) 0 0 0.00 0 0 1,520

Freedom Leisure- Loan (TLP) 1,017,000 1,017,000 5.50 0 53,271 63,926

Freedom Leisure- Loan (de Stafford) 651,750 651,750 7.58 0 47,050 54,484

Caterham Barracks 0 0 0.00 0 0 21,774

Gryllus Property Company Loan - 80-84 Station Rd East 1,012,500 1,012,500 5.81 0 58,800 53,924

Gryllus Property Company Loan - Castlefield 11,664,000 11,664,000 6.10 0 711,500 0

Gryllus Property Company Share Capital Note 4 5,251,500 5,251,500 - - - 0

Sub Total Non-specified (Non-Financial Investments) 21,990,749 21,990,749 0 1,009,721 334,651

Total Non-Specified Investments 35,252,575 34,813,554 294,408 1,570,921 926,135

Specified Investments-Short Term (less than 12 mths)

Banks/Building Societies Deposits 0 - 0.00 0 0 6,381

Notice Accounts 4,000,000 4,042,381 0.07 4,920 12,400 20,919

Money Market Funds 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.01 15,779 20,000 75,255

Total Specified Investments 24,000,000 24,042,381 20,699 32,400 102,555

Total Non- Specified and Specified Investments 59,252,575 58,855,935 315,107 1,603,321 1,028,690

Total Investment Income Budget 2020/21 2,764,200

Over/(under) budget (1,160,879)

P
age 63



Borrowing
Loan Amount

at 31/12/20

Estimated 

Average 

Borrowing

Interest
Expenditure 

to 31/12/20

Estimated 

Annual Cost       

2020/21                  

at 31/03/2021
£ £ % £ £

General Fund Borrowing

Gryllus Loan 3,420,000 3,420,000 2.46 42,066 84,100

Freedom Leisure Loan 2,225,000 2,225,000 2.45 54,513 54,500

Village Health Club 938,678 938,678 2.38 22,341 22,300

Linden House 4,175,000 4,175,000 2.69 56,154 112,300

Linden House 254,000 254,000 2.42 6,146 6,100

Quadrant House 15,340,000 15,340,000 2.41 184,847 369,700

Quadrant House 800,000 800,000 2.28 18,240 18,200

Gryllus - 80-84 Station Road 724,400 724,400 2.28 16,516 16,500

Gryllus - Castlefield 15,549,000 15,549,000 2.91 452,476 452,500

Sub Total General Fund Borrowing 43,426,078 43,426,078 853,298 1,136,200

General Fund Cost of Borrowing Budget 1,889,000

Over/(Under) Budget (752,800)

HRA Borrowing

Public Works Loan Board 61,189,000 61,189,000 2.76 831,153 1,662,300

Sub Total HRA Borrowing 61,189,000 61,189,000 831,153 1,662,300

HRA Cost of Borrowing Budget 1,926,500

Over/(Under) Budget (264,200)

Total Borrowing 104,615,078 104,615,078 1,684,451 2,798,500

Total Cost of Borrowing Budget 3,815,500

Total Over/(Under) Budget (1,017,000)

Notes

1. Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value for CCLA Property Fund is at 30 Sept 2020

2. Yield Rate

CCLA Property Fund dividend yield Dec 20 provisional provided by CCLA 4.27%

Schroders Strategic Credit Fund Fact sheet on Schroders.co.uk current yield as at 30 Nov 2020 4.5%

UBS distribution yield latest per UBS Fact Sheet (Q3 20) 4.5 %

CCLA Diversified Fund Class 2 dividend yield Dec 20 provided by CCLA 3.36%

Funding Circle yield based on net earnings to 31 Dec 2020 per Funding Circle statement

4. Gryllus share capital comprises of equity shares arising from loans granted - no dividend will be paid in the current year

3. Yield to 31/12/20 include actuals received or notified of at this date - CCLA Property Fund, UBS & CCLA show 2 quarters, Schroders only shows 1 

quarter.

P
age 64



Market Value of Long Term Investments at 31/12/2020 Appendix B

Carrying Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

Carrying 

Value

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020 31.12.20220

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Schroders Bond Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total 10,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000

Market Value

Market 

Value

Market 

Value Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value

Market 

Value Market Value

Market 

Value

Market 

Value Market Value

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020 31.12.2020

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund(mid-market value) 4,082,986 4,276,854 4,299,512 4,300,362 4,369,186 4,276,005 4,346,669 4,302,769 4,302,769 4,188,063 4,013,737 4,013,737 *

Schroders Bond Fund 2,963,563 2,912,837 2,908,609 2,891,399 2,825,575 2,865,130 2,910,421 2,873,584 2,934,878 2,539,938 2,798,400 2,927,632

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,018,705 2,918,160 2,895,094 2,905,148 2,777,398 2,868,479 2,916,977 2,927,623 2,957,787 2,520,713 2,721,211 2,817,616

CCLA Diversification Fund(indicative market value) n/a 1,921,257 1,972,126 1,990,756 1,913,197 1,982,167 2,032,111 2,049,420 2,074,392 1,804,193 1,928,260 1,971,862

Total 10,065,254 12,029,108 12,075,341 12,087,665 11,885,356 11,991,781 12,206,179 12,153,396 12,269,826 11,052,907 11,461,608 11,730,846

Surplus/(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

31.3.2017 31.3.2018 30.6.2018 30.9.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2019 30.6.2019 30.9.2019 31.12.2019 31.03.2020 30.09.2020 31.12.2020

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

CCLA Property Fund 82,986 276,854 299,512 300,362 369,186 276,005 346,669 302,769 302,769 188,063 13,737 13,737

Schroders Bond Fund (36,437) (87,163) (91,391) (108,601) (174,425) (134,870) (89,579) (126,416) (65,122) (460,062) (201,600) (72,368)

UBS Multi Asset Fund 18,705 (81,840) (104,906) (94,852) (222,602) (131,521) (83,023) (72,377) (42,213) (479,287) (278,789) (182,385)

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a (78,743) (27,874) (9,244) (86,803) (17,833) 32,111 49,420 74,392 (195,807) (71,740) (28,138)

Total 65,254 29,108 75,341 87,665 (114,644) (8,219) 206,179 153,396 269,826 (947,093) (538,392) (269,154)

* CCLA Property fund Market value is at 30 Sept 2020

P
age 65



Appendix B

Gross Revenue Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield Yield 20-21 Yield 20-21 Yield 20-21 Yield 20-21

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 30.09.2020 30.09.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2020

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund 164,434 4.03% 193,758 4.53% 183,989 4.30% 185,240 4.31% 171,000 4.26% 171,400 4.27%

Schroders Bond Fund 127,340 4.30% 105,413 3.62% 120,508 4.21% 124,418 4.33% 125,900 4.50% 131,700 4.50%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 100,600 3.33% 146,788 5.03% 116,513 4.06% 137,531 4.70% 119,700 4.40% 126,800 4.50%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a 62,732 3.27% 67,030 3.38% 66,284 3.23% 66,700 3.46% 66,300 3.36%

Total 392,375 508,691 488,040 513,473 483,300 496,200

Surplus/(Deficit)- Capital Value

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

Surplus/

(Deficit)

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund (92,996) -2.28% 193,868 4.53% (849) -0.02% (87,942) -2.10% (289,032) -7.20% (289,032) -7.20%

Schroders Bond Fund 16,634 0.56% (50,726) -1.74% (47,707) -1.67% (325,192) -12.80% (75,184) -2.69% (7,246) -0.25%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 36,559 1.21% (100,545) -3.45% (49,681) -1.73% (347,766) -13.80% (206,412) -7.59% (140,172) -4.97%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a (78,743) -4.10% 60,910 3.07% (177,974) -9.86% (121,160) -6.28% (102,530) -5.20%

Total (39,803) (36,146) (37,327) (938,874) (691,788) (538,980)

Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield Net Yield

2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

£ % £ % £ % £ % £ % £ %

CCLA Property Fund 71,438 1.75% 387,626 9.06% 183,140 4.28% 97,298 2.32% (118,032) -2.94% (117,632) -2.93%

Schroders Bond Fund 143,974 4.86% 54,687 1.88% 72,801 2.54% (200,774) -7.90% 50,716 1.81% 124,454 4.25%

UBS Multi Asset Fund 137,159 4.54% 46,243 1.58% 66,832 2.33% (210,235) -8.34% (86,712) -3.19% (13,372) -0.47%

CCLA Diversification Fund n/a n/a (16,011) -0.83% 127,940 6.45% (111,690) -6.19% (54,460) -2.82% (36,230) -1.84%

Total 352,572 472,545 450,713 (425,401) (208,488) (42,780)

Peer to Peer Investment 
2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 £ % £ %

Funding Circle £ % £ % £ % £ %

Carrying Value 2,003,355 2,075,341 2,056,664 1,831,028 1,415,581 1,091,959

Interest Paid by Borrowers 181,892 181,014 184,654 193,170 58,059 101,195

Less FC Service fee (19,121) (19,668) (19,729) (19,611) (5,741) (9,932)

Promotions/Transfer payment 470 0

Bad Debts (58,163) (61,288) (111,152) (127,649) (44,442) (66,341)

Recoveries 8,219 14,780 27,428 30,253 11,599 30,743

Amounts Recovered on principal in prior years (prior to  06.04.15) 0 0

Net Yield 112,827 5.63% 114,838 5.53% 81,201 3.95% 76,634 4.19% 19,476 1.38% 55,666 5.10% **

Provisions for future losses 0 0 (10,000)

**Funding Circle Net yield - this has been calualted against the current value, however principal is being withdrawn throughout the year. If calculated against the opening balalance then the net yield would be 4%

FY Forecast at 31-Dec-20

FY Forecast at 31-Dec-20

FY Forecast at 31-Dec-20

31/12/2020 Actual 

Provisional

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

FY Forecast at 30-Sept-20

31/08/2020 Actual

P
age 66



The Local Authorities’ Property Fund
Fund Fact Sheet – 30 September 2020

Investment objective
The Fund aims to provide investors with a high level of 
income and long-term capital appreciation.

Investment policy
The Fund is an actively managed, diversified portfolio of 
UK commercial property. It will principally invest in UK 
commercial properties, but may invest in other assets.

The Fund may invest a proportion of its assets in liquid 
instruments and cash in order to obtain appropriate levels 
of liquidity. Instruments used for this purpose may include 
cash and near cash equivalents, participation notes, UK 
real estate investment trusts, regulated or unregulated 
investment funds, and loan notes.

Target investors
The Fund is aimed at local authorities seeking exposure to 
UK commercial property for their long-term investments.

Independent Governance
The trustee is the Local Authorities' Mutual Investment 
Trust (LAMIT) a body controlled by members and officers 
appointed by the Local Government Association, the 
Convention of Scottish Local Authorities, the Northern 
Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation 
Committee and investors in the Fund.

Who can invest?
Any local authority in England, Wales, Scotland and 
Northern Ireland.

Income
Gross dividend yield 4.26%*
MSCI/AREF UK Other Balanced Quarterly 
Property Fund Index yield 3.46%**
Official Bank Rate 0.10%

* Based upon the net asset value and historic gross annual 
dividend of 12.0715p.
** As at 30 September 2020

Rolling 12 month distributions to 31st 
March:

13.96 13.19 13.70 13.08 13.06

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
0

5

10

15

20 Pence per Unit

Fund update
Improved pricing stability and a modest increase in 
transaction volumes allowed the moratorium in dealing in 
the Funds units to be lifted and dealings resumed from the
September dealing date. Capital values remained flat 
overall, but the position was not uniform across the sector.
Once more retail asset values fell but there was 
improvement in parts of the office sector and retail assets 
continued to enjoy broad support.

There were no acquisitions or disposals in the quarter, but 
it was a busy time for lease management activity. There 
were four substantial renewals completed the success of 
which reflected the demand for the Funds high quality 
assets in the industrials sector. Overall, the new 
agreements added c. £1m to overall income and also 
reduced the void rate, down to 8.5% including 
development voids of 2.9%. This compares to an industry 
average closer to 15%.

Conditions in the sector remain challenging but earlier 
fears of capital value weakness look overdone, this will be 
a down year but not to the extent feared when the 
pandemic first struck and overall economic activity fell 
away. Recent signs of improved stability have been 
encouraging and whilst it is important to avoid premature 
optimism, there are grounds for expecting a more positive 
environment in the new year.

Asset allocation at 30 September 20

■ Industrial & Warehouses 
36.63%

■ Offices 34.54%
■ Other 13.71%
■ Retail Warehouses 9.79%
■ Shops 2.61%
■ Cash 2.56%
■ Indirect 0.15%

The Fund has credit facilities which at quarter end were 
not utilised.

Page 67



Discrete year total return performance
12 months to 30 September 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
The Local Authorities’ Property Fund -2.80% +4.46% +7.64% +9.36% +2.93%
Comparator Benchmark -2.75% +2.82% +9.47% +9.47% +4.31%

Annualised total return performance
Performance to 30 September 2020 1 year 3 years 5 years
The Local Authorities’ Property Fund -2.80% +3.00% +4.23%
Comparator Benchmark -2.75% +3.06% +4.56%

Net performance shown after management fees and other expenses. Comparator Benchmark – MSCI/AREF UK Other Balanced Quarterly Property 
Fund Index. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results. Source: CCLA

Top 10 property holdings at 30 September 20 – Total 35.01%
London, Beckton Retail Park Elstree, Centennial Park
London, Palace House Uxbridge, Stockley Park
London, Imperial House Bristol, Kings Orchard
London, Goodman's Yard Leeds, Park Row
Bracknell, Arlington Square West Coventry, Torrington Avenue

Key facts
Total fund size £1,156m
Current borrowing £0m
Number of holdings 78

Income units
Offer (buying) price 302.56p (xd)
Net asset value 283.43p (xd)
Bid (selling) price 279.04p (xd)

Launch date 18 April 1972
Unit types Income
Minimum initial investment £25,000
Minimum subsequent investment £10,000
Dealing day Month end valuation day*
Sedol & ISIN numbers 0521664, GB0005216642
Dividend payment dates End January, April, July & October
Annual management charge (taken 100% from income) 0.64%
Fund management fee (FMF) 0.71%**
PRIIPs other ongoing costs 0.71%***

Please Contact
Mark Davies

Market Development
T: +44 (0)207 489 6045
M: +44 (0)7904 657 815

E: mark.davies@ccla.co.uk

Kelly Watson
Market Development

T: +44 (0)207 489 6105
M: +44 (0)7879 553 807

E: kelly.watson@ccla.co.uk

Jamie Charters
Market Development

T: +44 (0)207 489 6147
M: +44 (0)7468 560 680

E: jamie.charters@ccla.co.uk

* Dealing instructions for the purchase of units must be received by 5.00pm on the business day preceding the valuation date. If the valuation date is
a bank holiday, the dealing day will be the previous working day. Whilst units are realisable on each monthly dealing date, all redemption requests are
subject to a minimum notice period of 90 calendar days and will therefore be processed on the next available dealing day following expiry of the 
notice period.
** The FMF includes the Annual management charge and other costs and expenses of operating and administering the fund such as depositary, 
custody, audit and regulatory fees.
*** The PRIIPs other ongoing costs includes the FMF and where relevant, synthetic charges. Synthetic charges are the impact to the Fund of costs 
incurred in relevant underlying funds or similar investments. For more information on costs, refer to the Fund’s Key Information Document.

Risk warning and disclosures
This document is a financial promotion and is issued for information purposes only. It does not constitute the provision of financial, 
investment or other professional advice. To ensure you understand whether our product is suitable, please read the Scheme 
Information and the risk factors identified therein. We strongly recommend you seek independent professional advice prior to 
investing. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results. The value of investments and the income derived from them 
may fall as well as rise. Investors may not get back the amount originally invested and may lose money. Any forward-looking 
statements are based upon our current opinions, expectations and projections. We undertake no obligations to update or revise 
these. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated. Investment in the Fund is for Eligible Local Authorities only. 
Holders of the Fund are not covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS). The Fund is an unauthorised 
Alternative Investment Fund and an Unregulated Collective Investment Scheme established under a Scheme approved by H M 
Treasury under Section 11 of the Trustee Investments Act 1961 and is subject to provisions of a Trust Deed dated 6 April 1972 and 
supplemental Trust Deeds dated 6 April 1972, 13 September 1978, 21 April 2016 and 23 September 2019. The Fund operates as an 
open-ended Fund under Part IV of the schedule to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Exemption) Order 2001. The 
company CCLA Fund Managers Limited (registered in England & Wales No. 8735639 at Senator House, 85 Queen Victoria Street, 
London, EC4V 4ET) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and is the manager of the Local Authorities 
Property Fund. For information about how we obtain and use your personal data please see our Privacy Notice at https://
www.ccla.co.uk/our-policies/data-protection-privacy-notice.

Senator House | 85 Queen Victoria Street | London | EC4V 4ET | Freephone: 0800 022 3505 | www.ccla.co.uk
FMPYLF2018

Page 68



Learn more about Schroders' funds visit: schroders.co.uk 1

Fund objectives and investment policy

The fund aims to provide income and capital growth in excess of 3 Month GBP LIBOR (or an equivalent reference rate) (after fees have been
deducted) over a 3 to 5 year period by investing in bonds of UK and European companies but this cannot be guaranteed and your capital is at risk.
The fund is actively managed and invests at least 80% of its assets in bonds denominated in sterling (or in other currencies and hedged back into
sterling) issued by companies in the UK and Europe. The fund may also invest in bonds issued by companies worldwide and by governments,
government agencies and supra-nationals. The fund may invest more than 50% of its assets in below investment grade bonds (as measured by
Standard & Poor's or any other equivalent credit rating agencies) or in unrated bonds.The fund may also invest directly or indirectly in other
securities (including in other asset classes), countries, regions, industries or currencies, collective investment schemes (including Schroder funds),
warrants and money market instruments, and hold cash. The fund may use derivatives with the aim of achieving investment gains, reducing risk or
managing the fund more efficiently. The Fund may use leverage and take short positions.

Share class performance (%)

Cumulative
performance

1 month 3 months YTD 1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years

Share class (Net) 3.5 3.3 3.0 4.0 9.1 18.7 40.4

Target 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 1.8 2.4 4.7

Comparator 2.5 2.8 5.0 5.6 12.6 24.8 60.6

  Discrete yearly performance - Nov

12 month
performance

2015
-

2016

2016
-

2017

2017
-

2018

2018
-

2019

2019
-

2020

Share class (Net) 3.6 5.0 -1.1 6.1 4.0

Target 0.4 0.2 0.6 0.8 0.4

Comparator 4.7 5.9 -2.0 8.8 5.6

Calendar year performance

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2.9 6.0 4.6 -1.9 7.9

0.5 0.4 0.2 0.6 0.8

-0.3 7.0 5.2 -2.5 9.2

Performance over 5 years (%)

Schroder Strategic Credit Fund A Accumulation GBP GBP LIBOR 3 Months IA OE £ Strategic Bond

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

Past Performance is not a guide to future performance and may not be repeated.
The value of investments and the income from them may go down as well as up and
investors may not get back the amounts originally invested.  Exchange rate changes
may cause the value of any overseas investments to rise or fall. 
Source: Morningstar, bid to bid, net income reinvested, net of fees. Some performance
differences between the fund and the benchmark may arise because the fund performance is
calculated at a different valuation point from the benchmark. 
Please see the Benchmark section under Important information for more details.

Fund facts

Fund manager  Peter Harvey
Managed fund since  04.04.2006
Fund management
company 

Schroder Unit Trusts
Limited

Domicile  United Kingdom
Fund launch date  04.04.2006
Share class launch date  04.04.2006
Fund base currency  GBP
Share class currency  GBP
Fund size (Million)  GBP 812.60
Number of holdings  312
Target   GBP LIBOR 3 Months
Comparator   IA OE £ Strategic Bond
Unit NAV  GBP 1.7660
Dealing frequency  Daily
Distribution frequency  Semi-Annually

Fees & expenses

Ongoing charge  1.17%
Redemption fee  0.00%

Purchase details

Minimum initial
subscription 

GBP 1,000

Codes

ISIN  GB00B11DNZ00
Bloomberg  CAZSTBA LN
SEDOL  B11DNZ0

* **

***

Ratings and accreditation

Please refer to the Important information
section for the disclosure. The above are
external ratings and the internal ESG
accreditation.

Page 69

http://schroders.co.uk/


Learn more about Schroders' funds visit: schroders.co.uk 2

5 year return of GBP 10,000

Schroder Strategic Credit Fund A Accumulation GBP GBP LIBOR 3 Months IA OE £ Strategic Bond

Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20
9,500

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

12,000

12,500

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

Past Performance is not a guide to future performance and may not be repeated. 
The value of investments and the income from them may go down as well as up and
investors may not get back the amounts originally invested. Exchange rate changes may
cause the value of any overseas investments to rise or fall. 
The chart is for illustrative purposes only and does not reflect an actual return on any
investment. 
Returns are calculated bid to bid (which means performance does not include the effect of any
initial charges), net income reinvested, net of fees.

Risk considerations

ABS and MBS risk: Mortgage or asset-backed securities may not receive in full the amounts
owed to them by underlying borrowers.
Capital risk / negative yields: When interest rates are very low or negative, the fund's yield
may be zero or negative, and you may not get back all of your investment.
Counterparty risk: The counterparty to a derivative or other contractual agreement or
synthetic financial product could become unable to honour its commitments to the fund,
potentially creating a partial or total loss for the fund.
Counterparty risk / money market & deposit: A failure of a deposit institution or an issuer
of a money market instrument could create losses.
Credit risk: A decline in the financial health of an issuer could cause the value of its bonds to
fall or become worthless.
Currency risk: The fund can be exposed to different currencies. Changes in foreign exchange
rates could create losses.
Derivatives risk: A derivative may not perform as expected, and may create losses greater
than the cost of the derivative.
High yield bond risk: High yield bonds (normally lower rated or unrated) generally carry
greater market, credit and liquidity risk.
Interest rate risk: A rise in interest rates generally causes bond prices to fall.
Leverage risk: The fund uses derivatives for leverage, which makes it more sensitive to
certain market or interest rate movements and may cause above-average volatility and risk of
loss.
Liquidity risk: In difficult market conditions, the fund may not be able to sell a security for full
value or at all. This could affect performance and could cause the fund to defer or suspend
redemptions of its shares.
Operational risk: Failures at service providers could lead to disruptions of fund operations or
losses.
Capital erosion:As a result of fees being charged to capital, the distributable income of the
fund may be higher, but there is the potential that performance or capital value may be
eroded.
Counterparty risk:The fund may have contractual agreements with counterparties. If a
counterparty is unable to fulfil their obligations, the sum that they owe to the fund may be
lost in part or in whole.
Performance risk: Investment objectives express an intended result but there is no
guarantee that such a result will be achieved. Depending on market conditions and the macro
economic environment, investment objectives may become more difficult to achieve.

LOWER RISK
Potentially lower reward

HIGHER RISK
Potentially higher reward

Synthetic risk & reward indicator (SRRI)

1  2  3  4  5  6  7

The risk category is based upon the fund's risk
target and there is no guarantee that the fund
will achieve it.The fund’s risk category is not
guaranteed to remain fixed and may change
over time. A fund in the lowest category does not
mean a risk-free investment. A fund is in
categories 1 to 3 where it can take lower risks in
search of potentially lower rewards and its price
may rise and fall accordingly. A fund is in
categories 4 to 7 where it can take higher risks in
search of potentially higher rewards and its price
may rise and fall accordingly.

Risk statistics & financial ratios

Fund Target

Annual volatility (%)
(3y)

8.2 0.1

Effective duration
(years)

2.6 -

Current yield (%) 4.5 -

Yield to maturity 4.3 -

Source: Morningstar. The above ratios are based
on bid to bid price based performance data. 
Please note this is an accumulation share class
and as such the investor will not receive an
income distribution. Any income will be
reinvested into the fund.

Page 70

http://schroders.co.uk/


Learn more about Schroders' funds visit: schroders.co.uk 3

IBOR: The transition of the financial markets away from the use of interbank offered rates
(IBORs) to alternative reference rates may impact the valuation of certain holdings and disrupt
liquidity in certain instruments. This may impact the investment performance of the fund.

Asset allocation

Target refers to the Benchmark listed in the Fund facts section and described under the Share class performance section on page 1. Source:
Schroders. Top holdings and asset allocation are at fund level.

Sector (%)

Fund

Industrial

Financial

Liquid Assets

Utility

Securitized

Sovereign

Derivatives

68.2

23.8

3.7

3.7

1.6

-0.4

-0.6

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Credit quality (%)

Fund

AA

A

BBB

BB

B

CCC

Not rated

Other

-1.1

0.3

28.6

35.2

30.1

1.2

0.4

5.3

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Geographical Breakdown (%)

Fund

United Kingdom

Germany

France

Netherlands

United States

Italy

Luxembourg

Liquid Assets

Sweden

Spain

Ireland

Israel

Other

40.0

11.0

7.8

6.2

6.0

5.7

4.0

4.0

2.2

2.0

1.6

1.4

8.2

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Region (%)

Fund

Europe

United Kingdom

North America

Liquid Assets

Asia

Africa

South America

46.3

40.0

7.3

4.0

1.4

0.5

0.5

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Page 71

http://schroders.co.uk/


Learn more about Schroders' funds visit: schroders.co.uk 4

Top 10 holdings (%)

Holding name %

NUMERICABLE-SFR SA 7.3750 01/05/2026 144A 1.7

QUILTER PLC 4.4780 28/02/2028 REGS 1.5

PINEWOOD FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED 3.2500
30/09/2025 SERIES REGS

1.5

KONINKLIJKE KPN NV 7.0000 28/03/2073 - 144A 1.5

MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PL 5.7500 15/06/2026 144A 1.4

Nidda Healthcare Holding GmbH 3.500000 30/Sep/2024
3.5000 30/09/2024 SERIES REGS

1.4

J SAINSBURY PLC 2.87500 CONV PERP REGS 1.2

RL FINANCE BONDS 6.1250 30/11/2043 REGS 1.2

TALKTALK TELECOM GROUP 3.8750 20/02/2025 REGS 1.2

NH HOTEL GROUP SA 3.7500 01/10/2023 REGS 1.1

Share class available

A Accumulation GBP A Income GBP

Distribution frequency Semi-Annually Semi-Annually

ISIN GB00B11DNZ00 GB00B11DNY92

Bloomberg CAZSTBA LN CAZSTBI LN

SEDOL B11DNZ0 B11DNY9

Contact information

Schroder Unit Trusts Limited
1 London Wall Place
London
United Kingdom
EC2Y 5AU
Tel: 0800 182 2399
Fax: 0333 207 4504

For your security, communications may be taped or monitored.

Benchmark and corporate action information

The fund’s performance should be assessed against its target benchmark of 3 month GBP LIBOR (or an equivalent reference rate) and compared
against the Investment Association Strategic Bond sector average return. In relation to any fund that is managed with reference to LIBOR, Schroders
is in the process of assessing the potential alternatives to LIBOR and will notify investors of any decision to move away from LIBOR in due course. On
24.03.2014, the fund, previously named Cazenove Strategic Bond Fund, changed its name to Schroder Strategic Credit Fund.

Important information

A Key Investor Information Document and Supplementary Information Document are available. These can be requested via our website at
www.schroders. co. uk or call one of our Investor Services Team on 0800 182 2399 for a printed version. For investors' security, telephone calls to
Schroder Unit Trusts Limited may be recorded. Nothing in this factsheet should be construed as advice and is therefore not a recommendation to
buy or sell units. The data contained in this document has been sourced by Schroders and should be independently verified before further
publication or use. Issued by Schroder Unit Trusts Limited, 1 London Wall Place, London EC2Y 5AU. Registered No.4191730 England. Authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Schroders has expressed its own views and these may change.

* Morningstar Rating: © Morningstar 2020. All Rights Reserved. The information contained herein: (1) is proprietary to Morningstar and/or its
content providers; (2) may not be copied or distributed; and (3) is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. Neither Morningstar nor its
content providers are responsible for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information. Past performance is no guarantee of future
results.

** Citywire Ratings are sourced from Citywire.

*** Sustainability Accreditation
Our Schroders Sustainability Accreditation aims to help investors distinguish how we consider Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) factors
across our products.
This fund has been awarded an Integrated accreditation. ESG factors are embedded into the investment process and can be clearly evidenced. There
is a strong commitment to stewardship and company engagement.Page 72

http://schroders.co.uk/


ab

Multi-Asset Income Fund
Fund objective 
The strategy seeks to deliver an income of 1 month LIBOR + 3%, net of fees, 
utilising a diversified, conservatively managed range of income sources.

Performance
UBS Multi-Asset Income Fund performance (%)

Fund charges (L Acc share class) 
• Initial charge: 0.0%
• Ongoing charges: 0.70%
•  Dealing closing time & valuation

point: 12 noon

Minimum investment
GBP 1 million lump sum

Settlement 
T+3

Fund since inception date
16 November 2009 

Fund size 
GBP 37.5m

Yield target1

1 month LIBOR +3%3

Distribution yield2

4.5% 

Duration
4.59 years

ISIN code ‘L’ shares 
Accumulation: GB00BB0R2V23 
Income: UMAIGLI LN Equity

Bloomberg
Accumulation: UMAIGLA LN Equity
Income: UMAIGLI LN Equity

XD dates Pay dates
1 April 31 May 
1 July 31 August 
1 October 30 November 
1 January 28 February

Source: UBS Asset Management 
1  The investment manager’s target income is one month 
sterling LIBOR plus 3% net of fees. This target is not 
part of the Fund’s stated investment objective or policy 
in its prospectus and is not guaranteed. 

2  The distribution yield reflects the amount that may 
be expected to be distributed over the next twelve 
months as a percentage of the current share price. 

3 Fees are paid from capital.

Source: Lipper. L Acc share class performance is based on NAV prices with income reinvested gross of basic rate 
tax and in Sterling terms to 30 September 2020. For details on Fund charges, please refer to the panel on the right. 
Past performance is not a guide to future performance. The value of investments and the income from them may 
go down as well as up and are not guaranteed. Investors may not get back the amount originally invested. 
L Acc share class launched 25 June 2013     *Annualised

Source: UBS Asset Management & Bloomberg. Sterling terms to 30 June 2020
Note: Equities include impact of covered call overlay strategy

Fund commentary 
The economic and market environment in Q3 was driven by relative policy responses 
to the Covid-induced global recession, which in turn broadly fostered an improvement 
economic activity. Rising infection rates across Europe and the US, Sino-American trade 
tensions, and the upcoming US Presidential election and associated political tumults all 
represented key risks that investors grappled with pricing. EU leaders announced a semi-
nal EUR750bn fiscal package; Covid-19 trials yielded encouraging results; central banks 
retained a dovish stance, offering forward guidance with the Fed changing its policy 
framework to focus on 'average inflation'; and Capitol Hill disappointed in being unable 
to reach bipartisan agreement on further US fiscal support. Exposures across equities, 
fixed income, and alternatives all added value in Q3. High yield debt and investment gra-
de corporate bond exposures were key drivers of performance with government bonds 
also adding value. Emerging market equity exposures were the key contributor within 
equities as Chinese economic activity fully recovered to pre-Covid levels. Within alternati-
ves, domestic mortgage exposures performed best while bank loans detracted. 

L share class

3 months  1.9

6 months 10.8

1 year -2.4

3 years* 0.8

5 years* 2.7

Since inception* 3.0

Asset class contribution to income target 

Second Third Quarter 2020
For marketing purposes

For professional clients only

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

Traditional Alternative Targeted Income

IP Rights/
Song 
Royalties

MortgagesInfrastructureReal
Estate

Single-stock
equity call 
premia

Equity 
Dividends

Emerging
Market 
Debt

High 
Yield 
Debt

Investment 
Grade 
Corporate 
Bonds

Index-
linked 
Bonds

Nominal 
bonds

Page 73



Current allocations

Income Return Capital Return

This document is for Professional Clients only. It is not to be distributed to or relied upon by Retail Clients under any circumstances. Past performance is not a 
guide to future performance. The value of investments and the income from them may go down as well as up and are not guaranteed. Investors may not get back the amount 
originally invested. Changes in rates of exchange may cause the value of this investment to fluctuate. The Fund will use derivatives as part of its investment capabilities which 
will include short positions. These instruments carry a material level of risk and the Fund could be potentially exposed to enhanced/magnified falls, should the market move 
against them. The Fund is also subject to counterparty risk. As the annual management fee of the Fund is charged to capital, the potential capital growth of the Fund will be 
reduced. This document is a marketing communication. Any market or investment views expressed are not intended to be investment research. The document has not been 
prepared in line with the Financial Conduct Authority requirements designed to promote the independence of investment research and is not subject to any 
prohibition on dealing ahead of the dissemination of investment research. The information contained in this document should not be considered a recommendation to 
purchase or sell any particular security and the opinions expressed are those of UBS Asset Management and are subject to change without notice. Issued in October 2020 by  
UBS Asset Management Funds Ltd, a subsidiary of UBS AG, 5 Broadgate, London EC2M 2QS. Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Telephone calls may 
be recorded. © UBS 2020. The key symbol and UBS are among the registered and unregistered trademarks of UBS. All rights reserved. 27432A.

Source: UBS Asset Management. 
Note: Data reflects allocations within the Fund as at 30 September 2020. Please note that figures are rounded and therefore may not total 100%
1  Includes synthetic cash

Source: UBS Asset Management. Income return figures are rolling 4-quarters distributions (gross of tax) divided by NAV at beginning of period 
Capital return is quarterly composite total return net of both management fees and yield return. Fees relate to the L-share class management fee of 0.45% p.a.

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

Cash + 3 income targetRolling 4-quarters' income

Sep-20Sep-19Sep-18Sep-17Sep-16Sep-15Sep-14Sep-13Sep-12Sep-11Sep-10
90

95

100

105

110

115

120

Capital return

Sep-20Sep-19Sep-18Sep-17Sep-16Sep-15Sep-14Sep-13Sep-12Sep-11Sep-10

ILB
US

UK

Asia

Global

US

Asia

Asia
High
Yield

REITs
Intellectual
Property Rights

Mortgages
Infrastructure

IGB

HYBEq

Alts RE

Inner circle
Index-Linked Bonds 10.0%
Investment Grade Bonds 22.0%

Nominal Bonds 1.5%

High Yield Bonds 12.5%
Equities 20.0%

Emerging Market Debts 22.7%

Alternatives 9.4%

Real Estate 2.5%
Cash¹ -0.6%

Outer circle
UK 10.0%
US  13.5%
EU  4.5%
Asia 4.0%
DE -8.5%
AUT 10.0%
Global 12.5%
US 8.5%
EU 4.0%
Asia 2.7%
EM 4.7%
EM Debt (hard FX) 10.5%
Asia High Yield 
Bonds 12.2%
Infrastructure 7.5%
Mortgages 0.9%
Intellectual
Property Rights  1.0%
REITs 2.5%
Cash¹ -0.6%

EU

EU

EM

EMD

EM

gg

Nominal Bonds

For more information please contact:

Rachel Perini, CFA
Business Development Director
rachel.perini@ubs.com
+44 (0)20-7901 5576

ubs.com/am-uk

Page 74



Diversified Income Fund Unit Class 2  For local 
authorities and public sector organisations
Fact Sheet – 30 September 2020

Investment objective
To provide a balanced return from income and capital 
growth over time from a portfolio structured to control 
relative risk.

Investment policy
The portfolio will be actively managed and may invest in 
a wide range of potential assets. The control of relative 
risk will be an important influence on structure and 
strategy.

Target investors
The Fund is aimed at medium to long-term investors 
seeking a balanced return of income and capital growth 
and for whom control of relative risk is important.

Who can invest?
Any local authority and public sector investor in England,
Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. Investors should 
note that there is a minimum investment in the Fund of 
£1million.

Responsible investment policy
Information about the ethical and responsible policies to 
be followed by the Diversified Income Fund is available 
from the Investment Manager’s website 
www.ccla.co.uk.

Income
The Fund distributes income on a quarterly basis. As at 
30 September 2020 the dividend yield on price was 
3.31%. This is based on the last 12 months' dividend of 
4.88p.

Fund update
The recovery in global economic activity continued in 
the period, supported by strong consumer demand and 
an improvement in manufacturing output. These trends 
were reflected in the UK, boosted by high levels of 
direct spending by the government, to support 
businesses and protect jobs. In the global economy, 
growth should continue over the balance of the year but 
prospects are less certain in the UK. This is because 
government support initiatives were powerful but finite 
and the main contribution will fade in the final quarter. In
addition, unemployment is rising and there are concerns
that Brexit will impact on confidence. Support will 
continue from the Bank of England with a policy of very 
low interest rates and more quantitative easing. Looking
ahead into 2021, negative interest rates are a possibility 
and the Bank has begun a review of the implications of 
such a regime. Investment markets overall made 
progress in the period but not at the pace seen when 
recovery first got underway. Equity markets were the 
best performing asset class but the positive overall tend 
masks a wide dispersion of returns at the sector level. 

Companies with secure growth prospects did well 
whilst others, where prospects are less certain, made 
little or no progress.

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide long 
term capital growth and a relatively attractive income 
from a portfolio structured to constrain day to day 
volatility. A key part of this approach is prudent 
diversification into a broad range of assets including 
global equities and domestic fixed interest securities 
and also less traditional exposures such as student 
accommodation and music royalties. In the equity 
invested part of the portfolio, there is a bias towards 
companies where the growth prospects are not 
dependent on the broad trend of global growth. In the 
current climate this has resulted in relatively high 
weightings to the technology and health sectors and a 
low exposure to mainstream banks. The Fund does not 
invest in companies engaged in the production or 
refining of oil and gas.

Asset allocation at 30 September 2020

■ Cash 5.95%
■ Fixed Interest 29.09%
■ Overseas Equities 20.41%
■ Infrastructure & Op Assets 

15.83%
■ UK Equities 13.13%
■ Contractual & Other Income 

7.83%
■ Property 5.90%
■ Private Equity & Other 1.88%

Equity portfolio geographical breakdown 
at 30 September 2020

■ North America 39.54%
■ United Kingdom 39.15%
■ EMEA 14.91%
■ Asia Pacific 6.41%

Equity portfolio sector breakdown at 30 
September 2020

■ Real Estate 29.31%
■ Consumer Staples 14.31%
■ Health Care 13.72%
■ Information Technology 9.67%
■ Communication Services 8.08%
■ Financials 6.33%
■ Utilities 6.02%
■ Industrials 5.33%
■ Materials 3.79%
■ Consumer Discretionary 3.45%Page 75



Discrete year total return performance
12 months to 30 September 2020 2019 2018
Diversified Income Fund - Unit Class 2 -2.60% +6.37% +3.62%
Benchmark -0.93% +9.19% +3.58%

Annualised total return performance
Performance to 30 September 2020 1 year 3 years
Diversified Income Fund - Unit Class 2 -2.60% +2.39%
Benchmark -0.93% +3.86%

Performance shown after management fees and other expenses with gross income reinvested. Benchmark – composite: from 02.12.16 MSCI UK IMI 
20%, MSCI North America 6.67%, MSCI Europe ex UK 6.67%, MSCI Pacific 6.67%, Markit iBoxx £ Gilts 30% & Markit iBoxx £ Non-Gilts 30%. Past 
performance is not a reliable indicator of future results. Source: CCLA.

Top 10 equity holdings at 30 September 2020
Tritax Big Box REIT 1.94% UK Commercial Property REIT 0.98%
Primary Health Properties 1.60% Empiric Student Property 0.94%
Target Healthcare 1.28% Pfizer 0.81%
Picton Property Income 0.99% Telus 0.73%
Unilever 0.98% Verizon Comms 0.72%

Key facts
Fund size £173m
Number of holdings 173
Price £1.46
Fund launch date 2 December 2016
Unit Class 2 launch date 24 March 2017
Minimum initial investment £1m
Minimum subsequent investment £25,000
Dealing Daily*
Sedol number BDS68Q2
ISIN number GB00BDS68Q24
Dividend payment dates End February, May, August & November
Annual management charge (taken 100% from capital) 0.60%**
Fund management fee (FMF) 0.69%***
PRIIPs other ongoing costs 1.38%****

*The Dealing Deadline is normally 12 noon London time on a Dealing Day. The Valuation Point is normally 3pm on a Dealing Day.
** The annual management charge is deducted from capital which may restrict capital growth.
*** The FMF includes the Annual management charge and other costs and expenses of operating and administering the fund such as depositary, custody, audit and regulatory 
fees.
**** The PRIIPs other ongoing costs includes the FMF and where relevant, synthetic charges. Synthetic charges are the impact to the Fund of costs incurred in relevant 
underlying funds or similar investments. For more information on costs, refer to the Fund’s Key Information Document.

Risk warning and disclosures
This document is a financial promotion and is issued for information purposes only. It does not constitute the 
provision of financial, investment or other professional advice. To ensure you understand whether our product is 
suitable, please read the Key Information Document and Prospectus. Investors should consider the risk factors and 
the tax implications of investing in this fund identified in the Prospectus. Past performance is not a reliable indicator 
of future results. The value of investments and the income derived from them may fall as well as rise. Investors may
not get back the amount originally invested and may lose money. Any forward-looking statements are based upon 
our current opinions, expectations and projections. We undertake no obligations to update or revise these. Actual 
results could differ materially from those anticipated. Investors in each Unit Class of the Fund must be Eligible 
Investors as defined in the Prospectus of CCLA Authorised Contractual Scheme. The ACS Manager participates in 
the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS). The Fund is a sub-fund of the CCLA Authorised Contractual 
Scheme which has been constituted as a co-ownership scheme. The fund is authorised in the UK and regulated by 
the Financial Conduct Authority. CCLA Fund Managers Limited (registered in England & Wales No. 8735639 at 
Senator House, 85 Queen Victoria Street, London, EC4V 4ET) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct 
Authority. CCLA Fund Managers Limited is the Manager of the Diversified Income Fund. The Trustee is HSBC Bank 
plc (registered in England & Wales No. 14259 with its registered office at 8, Canada Square, London, England E14 
5HQ). For information about how we obtain and use your personal data please see our Privacy Notice at https://
www.ccla.co.uk/our-policies/data-protection-privacy-notice.

Senator House | 85 Queen Victoria Street | London | EC4V 4ET | Freephone: 0800 022 3505 | www.ccla.co.uk

Page 76


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd October 2020
	mISC23.10
	App A - Investment Borrowing Position
	App B - market values

	4 Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy  2021/22
	Enc 1 - Capital, Investment and TM Strategy

	5 Summary investment and borrowing position
	App A - summary of investments + borrowing
	App B - market values
	App C(i) CCLA proprty fund fact sheet
	App C(ii) Schroders fact sheet
	App C(iii) UBS fact sheet
	App C(iv) CCLA diversified fund fact sheet




